
1  

 
New College of Florida Board of Trustees 
Wednesday, April 26, at 2:00 – 4:00 pm  

Sudakoff Conference Center 
5845 General Dougher Pl,  

Sarasota, FL 34243 
Virtual viewing link: 

https://www.youtube.com/@NewCollegeofFL 
 

BOT Meeting Agenda 

1. Prayer  
 

2. Call to Order  
• Roll Call, Establish Quorum, Confirm Public Notice of Meeting 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
4. Call for Public Comment 

 
5. Consent Agenda 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

• Approve Minutes of the February 28, 2023, BOT Meeting  
• Approve Reviewed 2021-22 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Audit and Data Integrity 

Certification 
• Approval of Regulation Amendments - Regulation 3-1002(6): Tuition and Fees  
• Approval of Regulation Amendments - Regulation 4-2005: Degree Program Planning and Approval 
• Approval of Regulation Amendments - Regulation 4-6001: Institutes and Centers 

 
               INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

• Alternative Admissions Option 
             

BOARD MOTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONSENT 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
6. President’s Report – Richard Corcoran, Interim President  

 
7. 2023 Accountability Plan – Brad Thiessen, Interim Provost    

 
8. Changing Institutional Accreditors – Brad Thiessen, Interim Provost    

 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/@NewCollegeofFL


2  

9. Academic, Student and External Affairs Committee  
 

• Determination of Tenure for Dr. Rebecca Black, Dr. Lin Jiang, Dr. Nassima Neggaz, Dr. Gerardo Toro-
Farmer, Dr. Hugo Viera-Vargas 

 
10. Adjournment  



 

  1 

New College of Florida Board of Trustees 
Sudakoff Conference Center 

Draft Minutes for February 28, 2023 
 

Prayer 
Pastor Carl Dixon, Calvary Chapel Church conducted the prayer.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
Joshua Broyhill, New College Student, called for the pledge.  
 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 1:10 p.m. and a quorum was established.  
 
Trustees Present: Debra A. Jenks (Chair), Ron Christaldi (Vice Chair), Ryan Anderson, Mark Bauerlein, 
Lance Karp, Grace Keenan, Charles Kesler, Matthew Lepinski, Sarah Mackie, Christopher Rufo, Mary Ruiz, 
Matthew Spalding, and Eddie Speir  
 
Acknowledgment of Notice of Meeting   
Associate Vice President of Government Relations Christie Fitz-Patrick confirmed the meeting had been 
duly noticed.   
 
Board of Governors Presentation  
Governor Alan Levine presented the Board of Governors information and received questions from the 
Board.  
 
Call for Public Comment 
Public comment process ensued. The following members of the public provided comments: Sonia 
Howman, Mike Sanderson, David Gillman, Liz Leininger , David Land, Benjamin Casey, Betsy Braden, 
Jeanine Ashforth, Tamara Solum, Alisa Mitchell, Dani Johnson, Rev. Dr. John C. Dorhauer, Sam Sharf, Ruth 
Beltran, Kristen Miller, Jeremy Bicha, Sara Engels, Cynthia Shellabarger, Lisa Mejia (written provided), 
Jenny Wright, Olivia Paré, Jens Albiez, Joyce White, Shari Gorman, Debra Polito, Elizabeth Albiez, Rocio 
Ramirez Castro, Brendan Hersh, Diego Villada, Michael Penney, Wendy Armstrong, Alaska Miller, Tracy 
Fero, Eliana Salzhauer, Joshua Epstein, Matthew Senecal, Chloe Foder, Carol Lerner, Alana Armstrong-
Penney, Arthur Miller, Ph.D., Robin Williams  
 
Consent Agenda 
The consent agenda was presented and a request was made by Chair Jenks that it be approved.  
 
A motion to approve the consent agenda was made, seconded and discussion ensued on approving the 
minutes of the January 25, BOT Meeting and approving the minutes of the January 31, 2023, BOT Meeting. 
VC Christaldi asked whether the January 31 minutes provided to the Board included his changes as 
emailed. AVP Fitz-Patrick confirmed. Trustee Ruiz requested her Chair comments be added to the meeting 
minutes for January 31 and then questioned whether the January 25 minutes needed to be approved by 
the board since it was not an official meeting of the full board. After clarification from legal counsel was 
received it was determined the minutes were just recorded for a record of the public meeting. It was 
removed from the consent agenda. Following discussion, the consent agenda was approved unanimously.  
 

Consent agenda action items approved were as follows: 



 

  2 

 
• Approve Minutes of the January 31, 2023, BOT meeting 
• Approve Minutes of the February 13, 2023, Special BOT Meeting  
• Approve Minutes of the February 21, 2023, Special BOT Meeting  

 
Informational Items provided to the Board for their review as part of the Consent Agenda include: 

• Board of Trustees Committee Assignments  
 

President’s Report 
Interim President Richard Corcoran provided his remarks. After remarks were provided, Chair Jenks asked 
General Counsel Bill Galvano to confirm what is the oversight of the Board for direct-support 
organizations. GC Galvano relayed the oversight is fully at the discretion of the board. Chair Jenks stated 
to the board for them to keep their calendars open in case a meeting needed to be called in reference to 
the New College Foundation, Inc. in the coming weeks.  
 
Draft Policy on Implementation of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Changes  
Brad Thiessen, Chief of Staff presented the draft policy on the implementation of diversity, equity and 
inclusion changes and received questions from the Board.  
 
Following discussion, a motion was made to authorize the Interim President to follow through on the 
steps made in item one inclusive of eliminating the Office of Outreach and Inclusive Excellence, and 
making other personnel decisions as necessary in support of all laws and regulations, seconded and 
approved with 10 voting yes and 3 voting no. A second motion was made to authorize the Interim 
President to amend Section 5.2.2.1 of the Faculty Handbook to eliminate the request for “a statement 
regarding the candidate’s contribution to, or approach to achieving diversity,” seconded and approved 
with 10 voting yes and 3 voting no.  

Status of the New College of Florida United Faculty of Florida Collective Bargaining Agreement  
Chair Jenks stated, this item was deferred from the January 31 meeting to this meeting and she has taken 
discussion and consideration of the NCUFF Item off the Feb. 28th Board of Trustees agenda in accordance 
with legal guidance. Florida law requires that in conducting negotiations with the bargaining agent, the 
President or designee shall consult with and attempt to represent the views of the Board of 
Trustees.  While the College's President and designated committee bargained in good faith with NCUFF, 
significant changes have occurred since the negotiations and tentative agreement on certain terms were 
reached. Accordingly, she directed New College’s new Interim President Corcoran and the management 
committee to return to the bargaining table as quickly as possible after appropriate consultation. No 
action for the Board is needed at this time.  
 
Updates to 2022-2023 Operating Budget  
Chair Jenks requested Vice President of Finance and Administration Chris Kinsley present the revised 
operating budget for fiscal year 2022-23. VP Kinsley provided an overview of the changes.  
 
Following discussion, a motion was made to approve the revised operating budget for fiscal year 2022-
23, seconded and approved unanimously. 
 
Adjournment  
There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned 4:47 p.m.  



 

  3 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Christie Fitz-Patrick  
AVP Government Relations and BOT Liaison  
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Approve Reviewed 2021-22 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity 
Audit and Data Integrity Certification 

 

 
PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 
 

Consider approval of required review of the 2021-22 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity 
Audit completed by Mauldin and Jenkins for the period from October 1, 2021 through September 
30, 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

University presidents and boards of trustees are to direct their Chief Audit Executives (CAE) to 
perform an audit of the university’s processes that ensure the completeness, accuracy, and 
timeliness of data submissions to the Board of Governors. Audits are to be conducted in 
accordance with professional auditing standards and are to be submitted to the Board of 
Governors by March 1st each year.  
 
Additionally, university presidents and boards of trustees are required to execute a Data Integrity 
Certification affirmatively certifying each representation. The audit results provide a basis for the 
president’s and chair’s certification. 
 
 

Supporting Documentation: 
- Regulation 4.002  
- CAE Summary of the Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Audit 
- Mauldin & Jenkins Independent Accountant’s Report 
- Data Integrity Certification  

 
 

Facilitator(s)/Presenter(s): 
Alexander G. Tzoumas, Chief Audit Executive/Chief Compliance Officer



4.002 State University System Chief Audit Executives 
 
(1) Each university shall have an office of chief audit executive as a point for 

coordination of and responsibility for activities that promote accountability, 
integrity, and efficiency in the operations of the university. 

 
(2) Each board of trustees shall establish a committee responsible for addressing audit, 

financial- and fraud-related compliance, controls, and investigative matters. For 
purposes of this regulation, this committee will be referred to as the audit and 
compliance committee. This committee shall have a charter approved by the 
board of trustees and reviewed at least every three (3) years for consistency with 
applicable Board of Governors and university regulations, professional standards, 
and best practices. A copy of the approved charter and any subsequent changes 
shall be provided to the Board of Governors. 

 
(3) Each board of trustees shall adopt a charter which defines the duties and 

responsibilities of the office of chief audit executive. The charter shall be reviewed 
at least every three (3) years for consistency with applicable Board of Governors and 
university regulations, professional standards, and best practices. A copy of the 
approved charter and any subsequent changes shall be provided to the Board of 
Governors. At a minimum, the charter shall specify that the chief audit executive: 
(a) Provide direction for, supervise, and coordinate audits and investigations 

which promote economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in the administration of 
university programs and operations including, but not limited to, auxiliary 
facilities and services, direct support organizations, and other component units. 

(b) Conduct, supervise, or coordinate activities for the purpose of preventing and 
detecting fraud and abuse within university programs and operations 
including, but not limited to, auxiliary facilities and services, direct support 
organizations, and other component units. 

(c) Address significant and credible allegations relating to waste, fraud, or 
financial mismanagement as provided in Board of Governors Regulation 4.001. 

(d) Keep the president and board of trustees informed concerning significant and 
credible allegations and known occurrences of waste, fraud, mismanagement, 
abuses, and deficiencies relating to university programs and operations; 
recommend corrective actions; and report on the progress made in 
implementing corrective actions. 

(e) Promote, in collaboration with other appropriate university officials, effective 
coordination between the university and the Florida Auditor General, federal 
auditors, accrediting bodies, and other governmental or oversight bodies. 

(f) Review and make recommendations, as appropriate, concerning policies and 
regulations related to the university’s programs and operations including, but 
not limited to, auxiliary facilities and services, direct support organizations, 
and other component units. 



(g) Communicate to the president and the board of trustees, at least annually, the 
office’s plans and resource requirements, including significant changes, and the 
impact of resource limitations. 

(h) Provide training and outreach, to the extent practicable, designed to promote 
accountability and address topics such as fraud awareness, risk management, 
controls, and other related subject matter. 

(i) Coordinate or request audit, financial- and fraud-related compliance, controls, 
and investigative information or assistance as may be necessary from any 
university, federal, state, or local government entity. 

(j) Develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement program for the 
office of chief audit executive. 

(k) Establish policies which articulate the steps for reporting and escalating matters 
of alleged misconduct, including criminal conduct, when there are reasonable 
grounds to believe such conduct has occurred. 

(l) Inform the board of trustees when contracting for specific instances of audit or 
investigative assistance. 

(4) The board of trustees must obtain Board of Governors’ approval before outsourcing 
the chief audit executive’s entire audit or investigative function. 

 
(5) Each board of trustees shall ensure that the university chief audit executive is 

organizationally independent and objective to perform the responsibilities of the 
position. The chief audit executive shall: 
(a) Report functionally to the board of trustees and administratively to the 

president. 
(b)  Report routinely to the board of trustees on matters including significant risk 

exposures, control issues, fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters 
requested by the president and the board of trustees. 

(c) Conduct and report on audits, investigations, and other inquiries free of actual 
or perceived impairment to the independence of the chief audit executive’s 
office. 

(d) Have timely access to any records, data, and other information in possession or 
control of the university including information reported to the university’s 
hotline/helpline. 

(e) Notify the chair of the board of trustees’ audit committee or the president, as 
appropriate, of any unresolved restriction or barrier imposed by any individual 
on the scope of an inquiry, or the failure to provide access to necessary 
information or people for the purposes of such inquiry. The chief audit 
executive shall work with the board of trustees and university management to 
remedy scope or access limitations. If the university is not able to remedy such 
limitations, the chief audit executive shall timely notify the Board of Governors, 
through the OIGC, of any such restriction, barrier, or limitation. 



(6) In carrying out the auditing duties and responsibilities set forth in this regulation, 
each chief audit executive shall review and evaluate controls necessary to enhance 
and promote the accountability of the university. The chief audit executive shall 
perform or supervise audits and prepare reports of their findings, recommendations, 
and opinions. The scope and assignment of the audits shall be determined by the 
chief audit executive; however, the president and board of trustees may request the 
chief audit executive direct, perform, or supervise audit engagements. 
(a) Audit engagements shall be performed in accordance with the International 

Professional Practices Framework, published by the Institute of Internal Auditors, 
Inc.; the Government Auditing Standards, published by the United States 
Government Accountability Office; and/or the Information Systems Auditing 
Standards published by ISACA. All audit reports shall describe the extent to 
which standards were followed. 

(b) At the conclusion of each audit engagement, the chief audit executive shall 
prepare a report to communicate the audit results and action plans to the board 
of trustees and university management. A copy of the final audit report will be 
provided to the Board of Governors consistent with Board of Governors 
Regulation 1.001(6)(g). 

(c) The chief audit executive shall monitor the disposition of results 
communicated to university management and determine whether corrective 
actions have been effectively implemented or that senior management or the 
board of trustees, as appropriate, has accepted the risk of not taking corrective 
action. If, in the chief audit executive’s judgment, senior management or the 
board of trustees has chosen not to take corrective actions to address 
substantiated instances of waste, fraud, or financial mismanagement, then the 
chief audit executive shall timely notify the Board of Governors, through the 
OIGC. 

(d) The chief audit executive shall develop audit plans based on the results of 
periodic risk assessments. The plans shall be submitted to the board of trustees 
for approval. A copy of approved audit plans will be provided to appropriate 
university management and the Board of Governors. 

(e) The chief audit executive must develop and maintain a quality assurance and 
improvement program in accordance with professional audit standards. This 
program must include an external assessment conducted at least once every 
five (5) years. The external assessment report and any related improvement 
plans shall be presented to the board of trustees, with a copy provided to the 
Board of Governors. 

 
(7) Each chief audit executive shall initiate, conduct, supervise, or coordinate 

investigations that fall within the purview of the chief audit executive’s office and be 
designated by their board of trustees as the employee to review statutory whistle- 
blower information and coordinate all activities of the university as required by the 
Florida Whistle-blower’s Act. Investigative assignments shall be performed in 



 

 

 

 

 

accordance with professional standards issued for the State University System. All 
final investigative reports shall be submitted to the appropriate action officials, 
board of trustees, and the Board of Governors if, in the chief audit executive’s 
judgment, the allegations are determined to be significant and credible. Such 
reports shall be redacted to protect confidential information and the identity of 
individuals, when provided for by law. 

 
(8) By September 30th of each year, the chief audit executive shall prepare a report 

summarizing the activities of the office for the preceding fiscal year. The report shall 
be provided to the president, board of trustees, and the Board of Governors. 

 
Authority: Section 7(d), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; History: New 11-3-16. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

              INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 

 
Date: April 11, 2023 
To:  New College of Florida Board of Trustees 
  President Corcoran 
 
From: Alexander G. Tzoumas, Chief Audit Executive / Chief Compliance Officer 
 
Subject: Summary of the Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Audit 

 
 

In accordance with the June 25, 2020 correspondence received from Board of Governors’ Chairman 
Sydney Kitson, the New College of Florida must perform an annual Data Integrity Audit.  The integrity 
of data provided to the Board of Governors by each State University System institution is critical to the 
performance-based funding decision-making process. The objective of the independent audit is to: 
 

1) Confirm whether the process controls established by the College ensure the completeness, 
accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions to the Board of Governors that support performance 
funding metrics; and, 
 

2) Provide an objective basis of support for the College’s President and Board of Trustees’ Chairman 
to sign the representations made in the Performance Based Funding – Data Integrity Certification. 

 
While the directive from Board of Governors’ Chairman requires the performance of an annual audit, 

each respective university’s Board of Trustees and Chief Audit Executive may set the audit scope and 
objectives.  Since the previous audits found zero material data reporting exceptions, the Chief Audit 
Executive, in coordination with the Chairman of the Board of Trustee’s Audit and Compliance Committee, 
Chief Financial Officer, and Board of Governor’s Inspector General’s Office, determined the objectives 
of the audit should remain the same as prior years but the scope could be modified such that all ten metrics 
would be audited every three years on a rotational basis. The scope of the 21-22 audit is detailed in the 
attached report prepared by Mauldin & Jenkins. Mauldin & Jenkins has performed the independent 
Performance Based Funding audit for the last five years.  

 
Present Audit Exception 

 
The fiscal year (FY) 21-22 audit procedures performed by Mauldin and Jenkins to assist New College 

of Florida in determining the completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of Performance Funding Metrics 
data submission identified zero exceptions. 

 
Previous Audit Exception 

 
The FY20-21 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Audit identified one exception as detailed below.  
 
Exception 
 
There was one immaterial exception identified in the audit as follows: 

 
We identified seven (7) students who did not have the proper Student Class Level value in Banner. 

These students had a value of “U” (Upper Division Undergraduate”) instead of an “L” (Lower Division 
Undergraduate.  
 
Management Response  
 

Management provided the following explanation for the cause of the exception and the remediation 
efforts being made.  



 
In October 2020, our Information Technology programmer inadvertently changed the reporting 

program of this data element in the Board of Governor (BOG) Student Instruction File (SIF) files, while 
modifying the reporting program to account for the Registrar's substantial change to the College's transfer 
credit policy.  The change resulted in misclassifying some undergraduate students from ““L” (Lower 
Division Undergraduate) to “U” (Upper Division Undergraduate”).  The change did not impact the New 
College of Florida performance funding reporting numbers. Our Information Technology office has 
corrected the reporting program since then and we will complete the resubmission of the BOG Student 
Instruction File (SIF) files for Fall 2020 and Spring 2021 by the end of February, 2022. 
 
The FY 19-20 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Audit procedures identified zero exceptions.  
 
The FY 18-19 Audit noted one immaterial exception regarding the enrollment process of a Career Seminar 
and the effect on the calculation of Metric 1.  The exception did not impact previous years funding 
disbursements and the Board of Governors was informed before funds were distributed for that year. The 
Board of Governors has since revised the calculation of Metric 1 by excluding post graduate enrollment 
in any SUS courses.  The result is that the Career Seminar will no longer be included in the calculation of 
Metric 1. 
 

Conclusion 
 

Based upon the work performed by Mauldin & Jenkins and the internal process controls confirmed to be 
in place and operating effectively, I have concluded the processes and procedures used to report the 
Performance Based Funding Data are functioning in a reliable manner to ensure in all material respects 
the completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions and meet Board of Governors’ certification 
objectives.  
 

 
 
Enc:  Performance Based Data Integrity Agreed-Upon Procedures Audit dated September 30. 2021 with 

scope attachment 
 Performance Based Funding Data Integrity Certification Form 
 Management’s Representation Letter to Mauldin & Jenkins 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING 

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING 

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 
Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying  
   Agreed-Upon Procedures  .............................................................................................................................................. 1-3 
 
Attachment I Metric Related Submissions Testing ......................................................................................................... 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200 • BRADENTON, FLORIDA 34205 • 941-747-4483 • 855-891-0070 • FAX 941-747-6035 • www.mjcpa.com 
Members of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING 

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
New College of Florida 
Sarasota, Florida 34243 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Board of Trustees of New 
College of Florida (the “College”), solely to assist the College in determining whether the College has processes 
established to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions to the Board of Governors 
(the “BOG”) which support the Performance Funding Metrics of the College as of September 30, 2022. The College 
is responsible for all processes and procedures related to the complete, accurate and timely submission of data to 
the BOG.   
 
New College of Florida has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the College. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed 
may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this 
report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for 
their purposes.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 
 
Our procedures and findings were as follows: 
 
We reviewed the BOG submissions relating to the Performance Funding Metrics identified and published by the 
State University System of Florida (the “SUS”) specific to the certification. See Attachment I for a listing of the 
submissions management selected for testing in the current year. 

 
a) Testing of data accuracy.  

 

1. Identify and evaluate data validity controls to ensure that data extracted from the primary systems of 
record are accurate and complete. This may include review of controls over code used to create the 
data submission. Review each measure’s definition and calculation for the consistency of data 
submissions with the data definitions and guidance provided by the BOG.   

2. As appropriate, select samples from data the College has submitted to the BOG for its Performance 
Funding Model. Vouch selected data to original source documents (this will most likely include the 
College’s student and financial systems used to capture relevant information).  

3. Evaluate the results of the testing and conclude on the completeness and accuracy of the submissions 
examined. 
 



 

2 

Procedures Performed 

 
 For each metric and submission file identified, listed in Attachment I, we performed the following 

procedures for the specific metrics identified in the Performance Funding Metrics published by the SUS: 
 

 Obtained complete submission file for time period being tested; 
 Selected a sample size of thirty (30) data items, or other representative sample, to test for each file 

submission and each metric specific to the performance funding testing; 
 Verified data reported in the submission files specific to the metrics identified by the SUS agreed to 

the source system Banner; 
 Verified the data reported for each metric agreed with the SUDS data dictionary. 

 
 To determine the completeness of the files being submitted, we performed the following procedures: 
 

 For each term and reported time frame, we obtained a file which was extracted from Banner and 
compared to submission files extracted by the Institutional Research and Analysis department. For 
each comparison we identified any person that was on the Banner report that was not in the file 
submission. We then selected a sample size based on the size of the file and errors returned and 
verified the student was properly omitted for the specific submission based on the current data 
definitions.  Selected files and corresponding sample sizes are as follows: 
 
1. All students enrolled were compared to the Student Instruction Files (SIF) submitted. No 

differences were identified. 
2. All students who received Pell grants were compared to the Student Financial Aid (SFA) files 

submitted.  No differences were identified. 
3. All students who had a degree awarded were compared to the Degrees Awarded (SIFD) files 

submitted.  No differences were identified. 
 

Findings 

 

No exceptions were identified as a result of applying these procedures. 
 

b) Evaluate the veracity of the College Data Administrator’s data submission statements that indicate, “I certify 

that this file/data represents the position of this College for the term being reported.”  

 

1. Interview the College Data Administrator to consider the reasonableness of the various coordination 
efforts with the Data Administrator’s staff, the other Data Custodians' staff, BOG IRM, and other 
knowledgeable individuals which form the basis for personal and professional satisfaction that data 
submitted to the BOG is complete, accurate and submitted timely.  

2. Inquire how the Data Administrator knows the key controls are in place and operating effectively.  If not 
already done, consider verifying these key controls are in place and adequate to support the Data 
Administrator’s assertions. 



 

3 

Procedures Performed 

 

 Interviewed the following people who have significant responsibility for the data being reported and 
submitted to the BOG: 
 

 Director of Institutional Research and Assessment, Office of Institutional Research and 
Assessment; 

 Director of Administrative Computing, Office of Information Technology; 
 Controller, Business Office; 
 Registrar, Office of the Registrar; 
 Associate Dean of Enrollment Services and Director of Admissions, Office of Admissions and 

Financial Aid; 
 Director of Financial Aid, Office of Admissions and Financial Aid. 

 
 Verified communication with the Institutional Research and Assessment department is on-going and 

clear to ensure accurate and timely data submission. Also, verified the Data Administrator understands 
the key controls specific to the metrics being tested and that they are functioning.  This was performed 
through review of emails, various correspondence between departments, and discussions with each 
personnel. 

 Verified with the Director of Institutional Research and Assessment their communication with the BOG 
and IRM to ensure data being submitted meets the data definitions.  This was performed through review 
of correspondence and emails. 

 

Findings 

 

No exceptions were identified as a result of applying these procedures. 
 

We were engaged by New College of Florida to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestations standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of 
which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the processes and procedures for the 
complete, accurate and timely submission of data to the BOG. Additionally, the specific accuracy of the current year 
data submissions was not a part of our review.  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had 
we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported 
to you.  
 
We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to this engagement.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of New College of Florida’s Board of Trustees and 
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
January 20, 2023 
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
METRIC RELATED SUBMISSIONS 

OCTOBER 1, 2021 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

ATTACHMENT I 
 
 

4 

3
4
9a
9b

Due Date Submission Term or Year Rept Time Frame Sample Tested

10/13/2021 SFA - Student Financial Aid File Annual 2020 20202021 60
11/12/2021 SIF- Student Instruction File Summer 2021 202105 1
1/21/2022 SIF - Student Instruction File Fall 2021 202108 30
2/1/2022 RET - Retention File Annual 2020 20202021 1
6/15/2022 SIF - Student Instruction File Spring 2022 202201 30
6/29/2022 SIFD - Degrees Awarded Spring 2022 202201 30
9/23/2022 SIF- Student Instruction File Summer 2022 202205 9
N/A (1) HTD - Hours to Degree Annual 2021 20202021 30
(1) NCF used to be exempt for the HTD submission and still does not submit a traditional HTD file. The BOG accepts
a simplified version of the HTD file from NCF that does not have a due date. 

Submissions Tested

Cost to the Student Net Tuition and Fees for Resident Undergraduates per 120 Credit Hours
Performance Based Funding Metrics Tested

Four-Year FTIC Graduation Rate
Two-Year Graduation Rate for FCS Associate in Arts Transfer Student
Six-Year Graduation Rate for Students who are Awarded a Pell Grant in their First Year

For the above metrics, the data elements specific to those metrics were tested in the below submission files.

 
 



 
 

Data Integrity Certification 
March 2023 

Revised October 2022, to replace version issued in June 2022 

In accordance with Board of Governors Regulation 5.001(8), university presidents and boards of 
trustees are to review, accept, and use the annual data integrity audit to verify the data 
submitted for implementing the Performance-based Funding model complies with the data 
definitions established by the Board of Governors.   

Given the importance of submitting accurate and reliable data, boards of trustees for those 
universities designated as preeminent or emerging preeminent are also asked to review, accept, 
and use the annual data integrity audit of those metrics to verify the data submitted complies 
with the data definitions established by the Board of Governors. 

Applicable Board of Governors Regulations and Florida Statutes:  Regulations 1.001(3)(f), 
3.007, and 5.001; Sections 1.001.706, 1001.7065, and 1001.92, Florida Statutes 

Instructions:  To complete this certification, university presidents and boards of trustees are to 
review each representation in the section below and confirm compliance by signing in the 
appropriate spaces provided at the bottom of the form.  Should there be an exception to any of 
the representations, please describe the exception in the space provided. 

Once completed and signed, convert the document to a PDF and ensure it is ADA compliant.  
Then submit it via the Chief Audit Executives Reports System (CAERS) by the close of business 
on March 1, 2023.  

University Name:  New College of Florida 

Data Integrity Certification Representations: 

1. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and 
maintained, effective internal controls and monitoring over my university’s collection and 
reporting of data submitted to the Board of Governors Office which will be used by the 
Board of Governors in Performance-based Funding decision-making and Preeminence 
or Emerging-preeminence Status. 

2. In accordance with Board of Governors Regulation 1.001(3)(f), my Board of Trustees 
has required that I maintain an effective information system to provide accurate, timely, 
and cost-effective information about the university, and shall require that all data and 
reporting requirements of the Board of Governors are met. 

3. In accordance with Board of Governors Regulation 3.007, my university provided 
accurate data to the Board of Governors Office.



Data Integrity Certification, March 2023 
 

Revised October 2022, to replace version issued in June 2022 

 

4. In accordance with Board of Governors Regulation 3.007, I have tasked my Data 
Administrator to ensure the data file (prior to submission) is consistent with the criteria 
established by the Board of Governors. The due diligence includes performing tests on 
the file using applications, processes, and data definitions provided by the Board Office. 
A written explanation of any identified critical errors was included with the file 
submission. 

5. In accordance with Board of Governors Regulation 3.007, my Data Administrator has 
submitted data files to the Board of Governors Office in accordance with the specified 
schedule.  

6. I am responsible for taking timely and appropriate preventive/ corrective actions for 
deficiencies noted through reviews, audits, and investigations. 

7. I recognize that Board of Governors’ and statutory requirements for the use of data 
related to the Performance-based Funding initiative and Preeminence or Emerging-
preeminence status consideration will drive university policy on a wide range of 
university operations – from admissions through graduation. I certify that university 
policy changes and decisions impacting data used for these purposes have been made 
to bring the university’s operations and practices in line with State University System 
Strategic Plan goals and have not been made for the purposes of artificially inflating the 
related metrics. 

8. I certify that I agreed to the scope of work for the Performance-based Funding Data 
Integrity Audit and the Preeminence or Emerging-preeminence Data Integrity Audit (if 
applicable) conducted by my chief audit executive. 

9. In accordance with section 1001.706, Florida Statutes, I certify that the audit conducted 
verified that the data submitted pursuant to sections 1001.7065 and 1001.92, Florida 
Statutes [regarding Preeminence and Performance-based Funding, respectively], 
complies with the data definitions established by the Board of Governors. 

 

Exceptions to Note:  None 

 



Data Integrity Certification, March 2023 
 

 

Data Integrity Certification Representations, Signatures: 

I certify that all information provided as part of the Board of Governors Data Integrity 
Certification for Performance-based Funding and Preeminence or Emerging-preeminence 
status (if applicable) is true and correct to the best of my knowledge; and I understand that any 
unsubstantiated, false, misleading, or withheld information relating to these statements render 
this certification void. My signature below acknowledges that I have read and understand these 
statements. I certify that this information will be reported to the board of trustees and the Board 
of Governors. 

 

Certification: ___________________________________  Date: 1/23/23                      
University President 

 

I certify that this Board of Governors Data Integrity Certification for Performance-based Funding 
and Preeminence or Emerging-preeminence status (if applicable) has been approved by the 
university board of trustees and is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

 

Certification: ___________________________________  Date: 1/23/23 

                      University Board of Trustees Chair 
 

 



  

NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Revised Regulation 3.1002 Tuition and Fees  
 
 
PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 

 
Consider approval of amendments to New College of Florida Regulation 3.1002 Tuition and 
Fees.  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
As Florida’s premier honors college, both first year and second year students (freshmen and 
sophomores) are required to live on campus and purchase a meal plan pursuant to New 
College of Florida Regulation 6-3002 Residency Requirement.  
 
The Board of Trustees increased meal plan rates for the Fall 2021-22 Fiscal Year. The 
proposed change to the regulation increases rates by 25%, or from $1528 to $1910 per 
semester. The amount of the increase will be covered for Fiscal Year 23-24 by a one-time 
meal plan scholarship. i This increase will allow the College to address 1) Food and labor 
cost inflation; 2) Improvements to the meal plan. Proposed improvements include, but are 
not limited to: 
 

o Adding a baker 
o Having the Boar’s Head be open during the January ISP period 
o Adding “Grab and Go” options on the Bayfront campus 

 
This is the 10th and final year of the current contract with Metz Culinary Management, which 
will require New College to go out to bid for a new vendor or stay with Metz. At this point, the 
base “All You Care to Eat” Residential Meal Plan, priced at $1,528 per semester, is by far 
the lowest in the state. The proposed increase will continue to maintain New College as 
lowest in the state at $1910 per semester. Here is a sampling of other Florida school’s rates 
for comparable plans: 
 

Florida Gulf Coast University $2,277 
University of Florida   $2,300 
Florida State University  $2,574 
Eckerd College   $3,304 
Ringling College    $3,370 

 
All students must purchase the base meal plan; however, off campus students may satisfy 
this requirement by choosing the “Commuter 25” block plan. The Declining Balance plan, 
which is currently used by approximately 35 students, or less than 5% of all students, would 
be eliminated. The existing and proposed regulatory language is as follows 
 
 
 
 



  

EXISTING REGULATION LANGUAGE 
 
3.1002 (6) Tuition and Fees  
 

 
 
 

TEXT OF PROPOSED REGULATION AMENDMENT 
The full text of the proposed regulation amendment is set out following this notice. 
Strikethrough indicates deletion; Underline indicates addition. 
 
3-1002 (6) Tuition and Fees Schedule (Strike All Existing, and Replace with)  
 
(6) Meal Plan Rates 
 
The per term Meal Plan Rate for 2023/2024 for residential students shall be $1,910, with the ISP term 
rate being $608. Off campus students are required to purchase either 1) A Commuter Meal Plan or the 
2) A Residential Meal Plan. The ISP Meal Plan optional for commuter students, students who have 
fulfilled all mandatory ISPs, and for students who have been approved for an off-campus ISP.  
   
The President is authorized to approve all meal plan alternative rates, including commuter plans, the 
stand-alone ISP meal plan rate, employee plans, and visitor plans.  
 
 
Supporting Documentation Included: Regulation 3.1002    
 
Facilitators/Presenters: Vice President for Finance and Administration, Chris Kinsley 
 
 
 
 
 
 

i The total of all scholarships, including the meal plan scholarship, may not exceed the total cost of attendance.  
                                                



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Date:  April 26, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Revised Regulation 4-2005 Degree Program Planning and Approval 

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 

Consider approval of amendments to New College of Florida Regulation 4-2005 Degree Program 
Planning and Approval.  The amendments align the regulation with BOG Regulation 8.011 Authorization 
of New Academic Degree Programs and Other Curricular Offerings. 

BACKGROUND 

On June 30, 2022, the Florida Board of Governors amended Regulation 8.011 (Authorization of New 
Academic Degree Programs and Other Curricular Offerings) to include procedures for authorizing 
certificate programs, program minors, and program concentrations, tracks, and areas of emphasis.  
Section (7) of this updated BOG Regulation states: 

Each university board of trustees shall ensure that the university has policies consistent 
with this regulation and applicable accreditation standards for the approval, 
implementation, and review of other types of academic curricular offerings as defined in 
sections (7)(a)-(d) of this regulation. Copies of each university’s policies or regulations for 
approving other academic curricular offerings shall be provided to the Board of 
Governors’ office.  

The proposed amendments would put us in compliance with this BOG regulation: 

Section (1): A purpose statement was added 

Section (2): Definitions were added to align with definitions from the BOG regulation.  As required by 
the BOG regulation, New College terminology is identified (e.g., program majors are 
equivalent to Areas of Concentration)  

Section (3): The degree program authorization process was updated to align with BOG Regulation 
8.011.  One additional step was added in (3)(c):  new degree program proposals shall 
be shared with the Institutional Accreditation Liaison to determine if the program would 
result in a substantive change.  This addition aligns with BOG Regulation 8.011(7). 

Section (4): As required by BOG Regulation 8.011(7), a process for authorizing other academic 
curricular offerings was added.  The process for program majors (AOCs) and certificate 
programs mirrors the process outlined in Appendix 7 of the Faculty Handbook (Approval 
of New Areas of Concentration and Certificate Programs).  An expedited process to 
authorize minors (secondary fields) or program tracks was added in Section (4)(b). 

Supporting Documentation:  Regulation 4-2005  

Facilitators/Presenters:  Dr. Brad Thiessen, Interim Provost 

Other Support Documents Available:  N/A 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

4-2005 Degree Program and Other Curricular Offerings Planning and Approval

(1) This regulation establishes criteria and administrative processes to establish new academic programs
and other curricular offerings that are of the highest quality and aligned with the Florida Board of 
Governors (BOG) and New College of Florida (NCF) strategic plans. 

(2) Definitions
(a) Degree program: An organized curriculum leading to a degree in an area of study assigned a

Classification of Instructional Programs (CIP) code by the National Center for Educational 
Statistics or as demonstrated by the existence of similar degree programs at other colleges and 
universities.  Each degree program shall have designated faculty effort and instructional resources 
and shall be assigned a CIP code and included in the State University System Academic Degree 
Program Inventory.  Each degree program shall include at least one program major as defined in 
paragraph (2)(b) of this regulation.  Examples of degree programs at NCF include Liberal Arts 
(CIP 24.0199) and Biological and Physical Sciences (CIP 30.0101). 

(b) Program major: An organized curriculum offered as part or all of an existing or proposed degree
program.  A program major shall be reasonably associated with the degree program under which 
it is offered and shall share core courses with all other majors within the same degree program.  
These core courses shall not include common prerequisites as defined in Florida Statute 1007.25.  
Although the program major and degree program names may be identical in some cases, only the 
degree program shall be assigned a CIP code and included in the SUS Academic Degree Program 
Inventory.  NCF refers to program majors as “Areas of Concentration” (AOCs).  Examples of 
AOCs include Art (offered under the Liberal Arts degree program) and Chemistry (offered under 
the Biological and Physical Sciences degree program). 

(c) Program concentration, Area of Emphasis, Track, or similar curricular offering:  Any organized
curriculum offered as part of a program major that enhances or complements the degree program 
in a manner that leads to specific educational or occupational goals.  The number of credit hours 
in a program concentration, area of emphasis, track, or similar curricular offering shall not equal 
or exceed the number of credit hours established for the program major at the same degree level.  
Example of tracks at NCF include the Area Studies, Systemic, and Issue tracks within the 
International & Area Studies AOC (program major) housed within the International/Globalization 
Studies degree program (CIP 30.2001). 

(d) Program minor:  Any organized curriculum, independent of the program major, which leads to
the completion of specific educational or occupational goals.  Program minors are typically 
optional and may or may not appear on the student’s transcript or credential.  NCF refers to 
program minors as “Secondary Fields.” 

(e) College credit certificate program:  An organized curriculum of college credit courses offered as a
distinct area of study that leads to specific educational or occupational goals and for which the 
university awards a certificate, diploma, or similar form of recognition upon completion.  College 
credit certificate programs may consist of courses that are part of a degree program or distinct 
courses that are created outside any degree program.  Examples of college credit certificate 
programs at NCF include the Innovative Digital Media certificate and the Geographic 
Information Systems certificate. 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

(f) Non-college credit certificate:  An organized curriculum of study of any length that is offered for
non-college credit (as measured through clock hours, continuing education units, competency 
exams, etc.) that leads to specific educational or occupational goals and for which the College 
awards a certificate or diploma upon completion. 

(3) Process for new degree program authorization.

(a) The Provost, in consultation with the faculty, will determine new degree programs to explore for
implementation over the period covered by the university College’s strategic plan and the
university workannual accountability plan.  The Provost will choose to direct development of a
new academic degree program pre-proposal, which will be submitted for review to the academic
program coordination workgroup established by the State University System CAVP (Council of
Academic Vice Presidents), pursuant to Florida Board of Governors Regulation 8.004.  Proposals
to explore implementation of a new degree program can be initiated by either groups of faculty or
the Provost. The Provost will determine whether and when to include exploration of new
programs in the New College of Florida work plan. Proposals for exploration must be consistent
with the Strategic Plan for New College of Florida.

(b) Following the review by the CAVP academic program coordination workgroup, the Provost will
determine whether and when to include the proposed degree program in the one-year category on 
the College’s annual accountability plan.  The Provost will then determine whether to direct the 
development of a new degree program proposal.  The proposal, which adopts the common State 
University System new degree proposal format, shall address the following criteria: 

i. Institutional and State-Level Accountability

1. Program goals are aligned with SUS strategic plan goals, NCF’s mission, and NCF’s
strategic planning goals.  Program goals relate to institutional strengths, and the program 
is consistent with the program list provided in NCF’s annual accountability plan. 

2. There is a need for more individuals to be educated in the program.  Estimate the
headcount and full-time equivalent enrollment in the program, and indicate steps to be 
taken to achieve a diverse student body. Consider whether similar programs are offered at 
other postsecondary institutions in Florida and what impact, if any, such programs may 
have on the proposed program.  

3. Identify programs with a substantially similar curriculum at private or public state
universities in Florida and investigate the potential impact on those programs.  Document 
any discussions on opportunities for collaboration with the affected university and 
substantiate the need for duplication.  If a program with a substantially similar curriculum 
exists at a historically black university in the State University System, determine whether 
the proposed program may adversely affect that university’s ability to achieve or maintain 
student diversity in its existing program.  



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

4. Provide a complete budget for the program that is comparable in cost to similar existing
programs.  The budget shall reflect the purpose of the proposal and provide evidence that, 
in the event resources within the institution are redirected to support the new program, 
such a redirection will not have an unjustified negative impact on other programs.  

5. Describe the projected benefit (quantitate and/or qualitative) to the College, local
community, and the state of Florida if the program is implemented. Demonstrate efficient 
use of resources and justification for the investment. 

ii. Institutional Readiness

1. Provide evidence that the College has the resources in place or will make the necessary
investments to ensure that the proposed program will be of high quality. If appropriate, 
provide evidence that the proposed program will specifically relate to existing institutional 
strengths. If program reviews in disciplines pertinent to the proposed program or in related 
disciplines have included recommendations affecting the proposed program, the proposal 
shall provide evidence that progress has been made in implementing those 
recommendations. 

2. Describe a sequenced course of study with expected student learning outcomes, including
any appropriate industry-driven competencies, as well as a strategy for assessing student 
learning and reviewing academic-workforce alignment to make curricular adjustments as 
needed. Clearly specify appropriate admissions and graduation criteria. The course of 
study and required credit hours should include a timeframe consistent with similar 
programs. In cases in which specialized accreditation is available, evidence shall be 
provided that the program will seek accreditation, or a rationale shall be provided as to 
why the program will not seek specialized accreditation as required by Regulation 3.006. 

3. Demonstrate that sufficient qualified faculty are available to initiate the program based on
estimated enrollments and that, if appropriate, there is a commitment to hiring additional 
faculty in later years. Demonstrate that the academic unit or units associated with this new 
degree have been productive in teaching, research, and service. 

4. Demonstrate that the necessary library volumes and serials; classrooms, teaching
laboratories, research laboratories, offices, and any other types of physical spaces; 
equipment; and appropriate clinical and internship sites shall be available to implement the 
program. The proposal shall also indicate whether appropriate fellowships, scholarships, 
and assistantships are in place or if the university has made sufficient plans for their 
existence when student support is the norm for similar programs in the discipline.  

(1)(c) Proposed new degree programs shall be reviewed by the Vice President for Finance and 
Administration and the Provost.  The proposal shall be shared with the Institutional 
Accreditation Liaison to determine if the program constitutes a substantive change. The 
Provost and the Vice President for Finance and Administration Together they will develop a 
recommendation to the President. The President will determines whether to recommend the 
new program to the Board of Trustees for approval. 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

(a) If the proposed new program consists of assigning a new CIP code to an existing New College of
Florida Area of Concentration, the process can be expedited without the review in (b) below, and
with a recommendation from the Provost directly to the President for consideration by the Board
of Trustees for final approval.

(b) Except in the case of (a) above, proposals for new degree programs shall demonstrate the
following:

1. The goals of the new degree program are consistent with:

a. one or more goals of the SUS strategic planning goals;

b. aligned with the New College mission and strategic planning goals;

c. relate to New College institutional strengths; and

d. consistent with the New College of Florida work plan.

2. There is a need for more students to be educated in the program at the proposed degree level,
including:

a. estimating the headcount of FTE students in the program;

b. indicating steps to be taken to achieve a diverse student body; and

c. considering any impact similar programs offered at other post-secondary institutions in
Florida may have on the proposed program.

3. Identifying programs at another university in Florida with a substantially similar curriculum
and investigate the potential impact of the new program, including:

a. discussing the potential for collaboration with the affected university;

b. substantiating the need for a duplicate program; and

c. if the duplicate program exists at a historically black university in the SUS, determining
whether the proposed program may adversely affect the historically black university’s
ability to achieve or maintain student diversity in its existing program.

4. The proposal shall include a complete budget for the program which is comparable in cost to
similar existing programs. The budget shall reflect the purpose of the proposal and provide



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

evidence that, in the event resources within the institution are redirected to support the new 
program, such a redirection will not have an unjustified negative impact on other programs. 

5. The proposal shall describe the projected benefit to the university, local community, and the
State if the program is implemented. The proposal should demonstrate efficient use of
resources and justification for the investment. The projected benefit may be both quantitative
(data driven) and qualitative in nature.

6. A proposal for any degree level shall include a plan to achieve a diverse student body in the
program.

7. The proposal shall provide evidence that the institution has the resources in place, or will
make the necessary investments, to ensure that the proposed program will be of high quality.

a. The proposal shall provide evidence that the proposed program will specifically relate to
existing institutional strengths.

b. If program reviews in the discipline pertinent to the proposed program or in related
disciplines have included recommendations affecting the proposed program, the proposal
shall provide evidence that progress has been made in implementing those
recommendations.

8. The proposal shall describe a sequenced course of study with expected student learning
outcomes, including any appropriate industry-driven competencies for advanced technology
and related disciplines, as well as a strategy for assessing student learning.

a. Admissions and graduation criteria shall be clearly specified and appropriate.

b. The course of study and credit hours required should include a timeframe consistent with
similar programs.

c. In cases in which specialized accreditation is available, evidence shall be provided that
the program will seek accreditation, or a rationale shall be provided as to why the
program will not seek specialized accreditation as required by Board of Governors
Regulation 3.006.

9. The proposal shall demonstrate that sufficient qualified faculty are available to initiate the
program based on estimated enrollments, and that, if appropriate, there is a commitment to
hire additional faculty in later years. The proposal shall demonstrate that the academic unit or
units associated with this new degree have been productive in teaching, research, and service.



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

10. The proposal shall demonstrate that the necessary library volumes and serials, classroom,
teaching laboratory, research laboratory, office and any other type of physical space,
equipment, and appropriate clinical and internship sites shall be available to implement the
program.

11. For a graduate-level program, the proposal shall indicate whether appropriate fellowships,
scholarships, and graduate assistantships are in place, or if the university has made sufficient
plans for their existence when student support is the norm in similar programs in the
discipline.

(2)(d) The New College of FloridaNCF Board of Trustees will reviews the proposed new academic 
degree program proposal with regard to the criteria outlined in paragraph(3)(b) and its 
implementation costs., and vote on whether to approve the proposed new academic program. 

(e) Within four weeks of approval of a bachelor’s, master’s, specialist, or advanced master’s
degree program by the New College of FloridaNCF Board of Trustees, New College shall
notify the Board of Governors Office in writing and provide an electronic copy of the proposal
for each program, along with related Board of Trustees approval documents.

i. For new degree programs at the undergraduate level, the office of the Board of Governors
will assign a CIP code and add the program to the State University System Academic 
Degree Program Inventory. 

(3)ii. For new degree programs at the master’s level, the Board of Governors will consider
approval at a regularly scheduled meeting. 

(4) Process for authorization of other academic curricular offerings

(a) For Program Majors (Area of Concentration), College Credit Certificate Programs, and Non-
College Credit Certificate Programs: 

i. Faculty who wish to propose a new undergraduate Area of Concentration shall prepare the
following documents and submit them to the Provost’s Office: 
1. An Academic Learning Compact that articulates student learning outcomes
2. A General Catalog description that includes graduation requirements
3. A forward-looking assessment plan
4. A four-year plan of courses and educational activities that align with the learning

outcomes and graduate requirements 
5. Identification of any new resources the new AOC will need in order to be successful

(e.g., faculty, library resources, facilities, equipment, staff support) 

ii. The Provost acknowledges receipt of the proposal and forwards it to the Divisions for
feedback during Division meetings.  This feedback is forwarded to the Educational 
Policies Committee (EPC). 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017April 26, 2023 

iii. The EPC reviews the proposal and considers approval.  EPC-approved proposals are then
forwarded to the Provost for approval.  The Provost then shares the proposal with the 
Institutional Accreditation Liaison to determine if the new program major represents a 
substantive change. 

(b) For Program Minors or Program Concentrations, Areas of Emphasis, or Tracks

i. Faculty who wish to propose a new minor or program concentration, area of emphasis or
track shall submit the following documents to the appropriate Division Chair or 
Interdisciplinary Program Director: 
1. A General Catalog description that includes graduation requirements
2. Identification of any new resources the new AOC will need in order to be successful

(e.g., faculty, library resources, facilities, equipment, staff support) 

ii. The Division Chair or Interdisciplinary Program Director considers approval and forwards
the proposal to the Provost.  The Provost then considers approval. 

Authority: Article IX, Sec. 7, Fla. Constitution; Fla. Board of Governors Regulation 8.011 

History: Adopted 11-16-13; Revised 02-24-17 (technical amendment); Revised 04-26-23 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Date:  April 26, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Revised Regulation 4-6001 Institutes and Centers 

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 

Consider approval of amendments to New College of Florida Regulation 4-6001 Institutes and Centers.  
The amendments align the regulation with BOG Regulation 10.015 Institutes and Centers. 

BACKGROUND 

On March 30, 2022, the Florida Board of Governors amended Regulation 10.015 Institutes and Centers.  
The proposed amendments would put us in compliance with this BOG regulation: 

Section (1): Definitions were slightly modified to align with the BOG regulation 

Section (3)(f): Adds the responsibility for New College to notify the BOG within 30 days of 

establishing or terminating a university institute or center. 

Section (4)(b): Switches the annual reporting deadline from September 30 to December 1, in 

accordance with the BOG regulation. 

Section (4)(c)(4): Adds the requirement to provide an evaluation/review summary to the NCF Board 

of Trustees and then the BOG within 30 days of that BOT review. 

Supporting Documentation:  Regulation 4-6001 

Facilitators/Presenters:  Dr. Brad Thiessen, Interim Provost 

Other Support Documents Available:  N/A 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

 
CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

 
 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017 

4-6001 Institutes and Centers   
 
In order toThis regulation establishes criteria and guidelines to ensure that institutes and centers 
implemented at NCFwithin New College of Florida enhance existing College activities,  and are aligned 
with the goals of the BOG, and are of the highest quality, the following regulations have been 
established.Florida Board of Governors (BOG). 
 
(1) Definitions.  Within the context of these regulations, institutes and centers are defined as follows: 
 

(a) State of Florida Institute or Center.  An entity organization with a statewide mission that may 
include two or more state universities established to coordinate inter-institutional research, 
service, and teaching across the State University System.  Two or more institutions within the 
State University System may participate in an institute or center, whichState of Florida Institutes 
and Centers must be approved by the BOG.  The operational budgets of State of Florida institutes 
and centers reside within the base budgets of the host institutions; additional budget requests must 
be reviewed by the Council of Academic Vice Presidents (CAVP).  Only those proposals that 
receive a positive recommendation are carried forward to the BOG for consideration. 
 

(b) University Institute or Center.  An entity that is generally established by NCF at NCF to 
coordinate institutional research, service, and/or educational/training activities that enhance 
existing instruction, research, and service.  The budget of a university institute or center and any 
requests for additional funding are wholly within the purview of NCF. 
 

(c) Exclusions.  A number of units within NCF that are excluded from this policy use the term 
“Institute” or “Center” in their names, but do not meet the definitions in (1)(a) and (1)(b) above.  
Examples of these units include the Counseling and Wellness Center, the Fitness Center, the 
Gender and Diversity Center, the Pritzker Marine Biology Research Center, the Quantitative 
Resource Center, the Writing Resource Center, the Academic Resource Center, and certain other 
centers.  

 
(2) University Regulations for Institutes and Centers.  The New College of Florida Board of Trustees 

(BOT) has adopted this regulation for establishing, operating, evaluating, reviewing, and disbanding 
university institutes and centers in accordance with criteria from the BOG.  The President of NCF is 
designated by the Trustees BOT to grant authorization for the development and implementation of 
university institutes and centers at the College.  A copy of NCF’s university institute and center 
policies shall be on file in the BOG’s Office of Academic and Student Affairs. 
 

(3) Establishment of Institutes or Centers 
 

(a) To establish a State of Florida Institute or Center, the Provost of NCF shall prepare and submit a 
proposal to the New College BOT for approval. Approved proposals shall be submitted to the 
BOG’s Office of Academic and Student Affairs.  
(a)1. The proposal shall specify the purpose of the organization, the need and demand to be a 

State of Florida institute or center, consistency with the BOG Strategic Plan, and funding 
resources. The proposal shall also include a draft of the proposed Memorandum of 
Understanding, which has been ratified by the presidents of all affiliated institutions. The 
Memorandum of Understanding shall contain, at a minimum: 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

 
CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

 
 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017 

 
1.a. The name of the institute or center; 

 
2.b. The identification of the host institution and participating institutions; 

 
3.c. The mission of the institute or center; 

 
4.d. Guidelines for appointing, funding, supervising, and evaluating the director of the 

institute or center; 
 

5.e. The criteria for appointments to the institute or center’s advisory board, including terms, 
roles, authority, and, if known, current numbers; 
 

6.f. Expectations for the administrative and logistical support for the institute or center, 
including expectations regarding the reimbursement to the host university for direct 
costs of administrative services rendered by the university to the institute or center; 
 

7.g. Procedures at the institutional level for recommending increases/decreases in the 
appropriation of State funds for the institute or center; 
 

8.h. Specifications for the processing of contracts and grants, including the percentage of 
overhead funds to be returned to the institute or center; and 
 

9.i. Expectations and criteria for the cyclic review of the institute or center and other 
planning and expectations for its operation. 

 
(b) After review by the BOG staff, the proposal will be forwarded to the Council of Academic Vice 

Presidents (CAVP) for approval and recommendation to the Chancellor. The Chancellor then 
determines whether or not this proposal should be carried forward to the BOG. Any state of 
Florida institute or center must receive full approval from the BOG prior to implementation to 
receive State of Florida status. 
 

(c) University institutes and centers at NCF shall be established in accordance with this regulation. 
An application for a NCF university institute and center should include the following elements:  

 
1. Concept paper. 

 
2. Estimated expenditures for the institute/center (staff, facilities, and budget). 

 
3. Name and qualifications of the proposed institute/center director, his or her disciplinary 

affiliation, and other College affiliations. 
 

4. Mission of the institute/center. 
 

5. Identification of the types and qualifications of individuals and/or organizations which might 
be formally affiliated with the institute/center other than employees of the institute/center. 
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

 
CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

 
 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017 

6. Identification of the manner in which undergraduate NCF students will benefit from 
establishment of the institute/center. 
 

7. Identification of the expected outcomes and assessment measures to be used in evaluating the 
effectiveness of the proposed institute/center. 
 

8. Recommendation from the appropriate Chair, if the focus is disciplinary/divisional, and the 
Provost, if the focus is at the College level. 

 
(d) The Provost or his/her designee will coordinate review of the proposal and provide the proposal 

to the Administrative Council and the NCF Faculty for information and comment. If the proposal 
is deemed to have merit, the Provost will then present the proposal to the President for approval. 
Following approval by the President, the proposal will be presented to the BOT for approval. 
 

(e) A copy of an approved NCF new university institute or center proposal containing basic 
descriptive, contact, and fiscal information shall be submitted to the BOG’s Office of Academic 
and Student Affairs.  In cases where more than one university is participating, a host university is 
designated to handle reporting and evaluation of the institute or center. 

 
(e)(f) NCF is responsible for notifying the BOG office about the establishment or termination of any 

university institute and center within 30 days of such action. 
 

(4) Institute and Center Reporting Requirements 
 

(a) The BOG’s Office of Academic and Student Affairs shall provide maintain an online Institute and 
Center Reporting database, which will also serve as the official inventory of approved State 
University System Institutes and Centers. 
 

(b) Initial Reporting.  Upon receipt of notification that a record has been created for the institute or 
center in the Institute and Center Reporting database, NCF shall enter descriptive and budgetary 
information in accordance with instructions provided by the Office of Academic and Student 
Affairs. 
 

(c)(b) Annual Reporting.  No later than September 30December 1 of each year, actual and estimated 
expenditure and position datainformation shall be entered in the database for the fiscal year 
running from July 1 of the previous year to June 30 of the current year, in accordance with 
instructions provided byprovided to the BOG’s Office of Academic and Student Affairs. Prior 
to submission to the Office of Academic and Student Affairs, all annual reporting information 
must be approved by the NCF BOT of NCF or their designee. 

 
(d)(c) Evaluation/Review.  Copies of all evaluation/review information shall be submitted to the 

BOG’s Office of Academic and Student Affairs. 
 

1. State of Florida institutes and centers shall be reviewed based on criteria and procedures 
established below and within the Memorandum of Understanding. External consultants may 
be used in the review process. At a minimum, each State of Florida institute or center shall be 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

 
CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

 
 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017 

reviewed every five years by the host institution. A copy of the review will be provided to the 
Council of Academic Vice Presidents to inform any related budget recommendations. 
 

2. NCF university institutes and centers shall undergo a formal reviewmust be reviewed at least 
every seven years. 
 

3. At a minimum, all evaluations/reviews shall include: 
 
a. A determination of the institute or center’s progress toward defined goals and objectives 

within the context of the institute or center’s mission, the participating university 
missions, and the current BOG’s Strategic Plan; 

 
b. An assessment of the return on investment of State dollars, if applicable; 
 
c. The need for continuation of the institute or center; 
 
d. Possible changes in mission or organizational structure; 
 
e. Budget reduction or expansion; 
 
f. Recommendations for change of classification (State of Florida, Infrastructural,  or 

University institute or center), if applicable; and 
 
g. Recommendations for status change (active, inactive, terminated), if applicable. 

 
4. Upon completion, a summary of the evaluation/review must be provided to the NCF BOT 

with a certification that the evaluation/review contained all the required components. A copy 
of the summary must be submitted to the BOG office within 30 days after the NCF BOT 
review. 

 
(5) Disbanding an Institute or Center.  University institutes and centers at NCF shall be disbanded at the 

request of NCF; and, in the case where the College is the host university, with the agreement of 
participating universities.  State of Florida institutes and centers shall be disbanded at the 
recommendation of the Council of Academic Vice Presidents and upon the approval of the BOG.  
When an institute or center is disbanded, the host university shall notify the BOG’s Office of 
Academic and Student Affairs. 
 

(6) If a disbanded institute or center has been funded by the Legislature, the university must provide 
documentation to ensure that Legislative intent has been achieved and that the institute or center is no 
longer required. Fiscal information must be provided as part of the annual reporting process if the 
institute or center expends any funds during the fiscal year in which it is disbanded. 
 
 
Authority: Article IX, Sec. 7, Fla. Constitution; Fla. Stat. Chapter 1004; Fla. Board of Governors 
Regulations 1.001 and 10.015 
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 
REGULATIONS MANUAL 

 
CHAPTER 4 - Academic Affairs 

 
 

NCF Regulations Manual, Chapter 4 - Academic Affairs 
Updated March 11, 2017 

History: Adopted 05-13-06; Revised and renumbered 11-07-09; Revised 03-11-17 (technical 
amendment); Revised 04-26-23 

 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Date:  April 26, 2023

SUBJECT:  Informational Report: Alternative Admissions Option (No Board Action Required)

 BACKGROUND 

Revisions made to NCF Regulation 5-1002 on April 20, 2021 include an annual 
reporting requirement to the Board of Trustees for those students admitted under the 
“alternative admissions option”. The “alternative admissions option” is an option for 
admission of an applicant who does not fully meet minimum admissions requirements 
but who has special attributes, special talents, or unique circumstances that may 
contribute to a representative and diverse student body. Up to 15% of the College’s 
first-time-in-college students may be admitted in this way (as “profile admits”) each year. 
In accordance with 5-1002(5b) the Office of the Provost will coordinate additional 
advising resources to support students who are “profile admits” and report on their 
progress (retention and graduation rates) annually, compared to the entire student 
body. 

Supporting Documentation Included: 
-BOT Profile Admit Report
-Profile Admit Data



Informational Update Report on FTIC Profile Admit Students 
(Prepared by the Office of the Provost, April 2023) 

An FTIC profile admit is a student who is admitted to New College without having fully met 
minimum admissions requirements. According to Regulation 5-1002 on Undergraduate 
Admissions, the Office of Admissions may admit an applicant who does not fully meet minimum 
admission requirements but who has special attributes, special talents or unique circumstances 
that may contribute to a representative and diverse student body, when the applicant can 
reasonably be expected to do satisfactory work at NCF. In April 2021, additional language was 
added to Regulation 5-1002 
(5) Substitution, Modification or Waiver of Admissions Requirements (a) “up to 15% of the
College's first-time-in-college students may be admitted in this way each year.”

Analysis of data from Admissions and Institutional Research show that we are in compliance with 
this requirement: 

• From Fall 2017-Fall 2022, only 2-8% of FTIC students were profile admitted (Table 1).
• Table 2 shows that of the profile admitted applicants only 18-22% enrolled at New College

in the last two years.

Section 5b of the same regulation states that the “Office of the Provost will coordinate additional 
advising resources to support students who did not fully meet minimum admission requirements, 
and report on their progress annually to the Board of Trustees. The report will detail the retention 
and graduation rates for these students as compared to the entire student body.” 

Data in Table 3 from Admissions and Institutional Research show the following: 
• Given the small number of profile admit students in each entering year, yearly variations in

retention and four-year graduation rates are much greater among this population than
among the larger populations of non-profile admit students.

• Summing data from the last 12 years, the FTIC profile admit students have a lower first- 
year retention rate (65%) compared to non-profile admit students (82%).

• Summing data for FTIC students entering from Fall 2010 through Fall 2018, the four-year
graduation rate is lower for profile admit students (40%) than for non-profile admit
students (56%).

Student Support Strategies 

1. Notification
At the start of each semester, the Office of Enrollment Management notifies the Provost’s Office 
(Dean of Studies) of the profile admitted students. This list includes student names and 
admissions exceptions. 

2. Intervention
The Dean of Studies reviews the list and contacts the faculty advisors with specific 
recommendations to support student success. These recommendations include working with the 
students to ensure that students are: 

• Enrolled in a Set Sail first-year seminar.



• Connected with supportive resources specific to their profile exception including but not
limited to the Writing Resource Center, Quantitative Resource Center, and Student
Success Center.

• Enrolled in a language course (if missing the state-required world language requirement),
or a plan to complete the language requirement is discussed with student and advisor.

• Enrolled in a math course (if missing the math requirement). Recently, several supportive
math courses have been added to the schedule including “To Infinity and Beyond” and
“Set Sail: Mathematical Thinking: Puzzles, Problems and Exploration.”

3. Continued Campus Connection and Tracking
• The Office of Enrollment Management continues to track profile admits and communicates

with students who have missing requirement.
• The Dean of Studies continues to work with students each semester and provides

additional supportive measures including Academic Success tutorials, group support
sessions offered by the CWC, and specific academic courses.

• Development of the Academic Support Referral system (ASR) connects all students
(regardless of admission status) with student success coaches and specific academic
supports (including, coaching, tutoring, and additional faculty support).

Our goal for profile admits is that they are retained, supported, and eligible to graduate at the 
same rate as non-profile admits. Recent improvements in student support programs and targeted 
course development as well as new FTIC programming will help these students achieve this goal. 



1 | P a g e

New College of Florida 
Academic Year 2022-2023  

FTIC Profile Admit Students Retention and Graduation Rates Report 

Table 1. Percent of FTIC Profile Admit Students 

Fall 2017 Fall 2018 Fall 2019 Fall 2020 Fall 2021 Fall 2022 
FTIC Entering Cohort 199 192 147 156 160 188 

FTIC Profile Admit Students 4 11 11 12 11 12 
% FTIC Profile Admit 
Students 

2% 6% 7% 8% 7% 6% 

Table 2. Percent of FTIC Profile Admitted Applicants Enrolled at New College of Florida 

Term 
Total FTIC Profile Admitted 

Applicants 
Total FTIC Profile Admitted and 

Enrolled Students 
% FTIC Profile Admit Applicants 

Enrolled at NCF 

Fall 2013 33 5 15% 

Fall 2014 28 7 25% 

Fall 2015 16 3 19% 

Fall 2016 37 3 8% 

Fall 2017 16 4 25% 

Fall 2018 18 11 61% 

Fall 2019 66 11 17% 

Fall 2020 67 12 18% 

Fall 2021 52 11 21% 

Fall 2022 54 12 22% 



2 | P a g e

Table 3. FTIC Profile Admitted Students First-Year Retention and Four-Year Graduation Rates 

FTIC Profile Admit Students FTIC Non-Profile Admit Students 

Entering 
Term 

Entering 
Cohort 

Retained 
in the 
Spring 
Term 

Fall to 
Spring 

Retention 
Rate 

Retained 
in First 

Year 

First-Year 
Retention 

Rate 

Grad. in 
Four 

Years 

Four-
Year 

Grad. 
Rate 

Entering 
Cohort 

Retained 
in the 
Spring 
Term 

Fall to 
Spring 

Retention 
Rate 

Retained 
in First 

Year 

First-Year 
Retention 

Rate 

Grad. in 
Four 

Years 

Four-
Year 

Grad. 
Rate 

Fall 2010 1 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 182 171 94% 158 87% 98 54% 
Fall 2011 4 4 100% 3 75% 1 25% 233 215 92% 193 83% 134 58% 
Fall 2012 7 7 100% 6 86% 4 57% 216 202 94% 175 81% 113 52% 
Fall 2013 5 4 80% 5 100% 2 40% 217 199 92% 173 80% 117 54% 
Fall 2014 7 6 86% 6 86% 4 57% 228 218 96% 185 81% 127 56% 
Fall 2015 3 3 100% 3 100% 2 67% 258 243 94% 217 84% 149 58% 
Fall 2016 3 2 67% 1 33% 0 0% 227 211 93% 180 79% 124 55% 
Fall 2017 4 3 75% 3 75% 3 75% 195 178 91% 148 76% 107 55% 
Fall 2018 11 9 82% 7 64% 2 18% 181 168 93% 158 87% 110 61% 
Fall 2019 11 8 73% 4 36% N/A 136 125 92% 114 84% N/A 
Fall 2020 12 9 75% 8 67% N/A 144 131 91% 115 80% N/A 
Fall 2021 11 7 64% 5 45% N/A 149 136 91% 115 77% N/A 
Fall 2022 12 12 100% N/A N/A 176 162 92% N/A N/A 
Grand 
Total 91 75 82% 51 65% 18 40%      2,542      2,359 93%      1,931 82%     1,079 56% 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Date:  April 26, 2022 

SUBJECT:  2023 Accountability Plan 

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION 
Consider approval of New College of Florida’s 2023 Accountability Plan to be submitted to the Board of 
Governors by May 1, 2023.  The Accountability Plan will be presented at the June meeting of the Board 
of Governors. 

Authorize the President to make necessary grammatical and formating adjustments to the Accountability 
Plan prior to submission. 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with Florida Statute 1001.706 and Board Regulation 2.002, New College of Florida’s 2023 
Accountability Plan outlines the College’s top priorities and strategic directions, and reports performance 
on previously approved institutional and system goals. The layout for the 2023 Accountability Plan is 
largely the same as the 2022 template, with a few notable changes that are listed below.

(1) A new narrative section has been added to capture institution’s specific endorsement of the Board of 
Governors' Statement of Free Expression, as well as a clear expectation for open-minded and tolerant civil 
discourse throughout the campus community.

(2) PBF#1: Percent of Bachelor’s Graduates Enrolled or Employed wage threshold changed from $30,000 
to $40,000.

(3) PBF#3: Average Cost to the Student will be reported in two ways this year – as PBF3.1 and PBF3.2 
where PBF3.1 uses the same historical methodology while PBF3.2 uses the same method except it 
excludes federal emergency funds. Having this data in the 2023 plans will enable us to make a smooth 
transition off of these federal emergency funds in the 2024 plans.  

(4) PBF#9A: FCS AA Transfer Graduation Rate has changed from a two-year to a three-year measure.

Supporting Documentation Included:  2023 Accountability Plan 
Facilitators/Presenters:   Interim Provost Brad Thiessen
Other Support Documents Available:  N/A 



2023  
ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 

NEW COLLEGE OF  
FLORIDA   
Draft  4/26/23 
  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 2 

Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................... 3 

STRATEGY ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Mission Statement .......................................................................................................................4 
Statement of Strategy .................................................................................................................5 
Strengths, Opportunities & Challenges .................................................................................6 
Three Key Initiatives & Investments.......................................................................................7 
Graduation Rate Improvement Plan Update .......................................................................8 
Key Achievements for Last Year .............................................................................................9 
Performance-Based Funding Goal Adjustments ...............................................................10 

PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS......................................................... 10 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ........................................................................... 13 

Teaching & Learning  .................................................................................................................13 
Scholarship, Research & Innovation Metrics ......................................................................16 

ENROLLMENT PLANNING ............................................................................................ 18 

ACADEMIC PROGRAM COORDINATION .................................................................. 20 

DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................... 21 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 3 

INTRODUCTION 

The Accountability Plan is an annual report that is closely aligned with the Board of Governors’ 
2025 System Strategic Plan.  This report enhances the System’s commitment to accountability and 
strategic planning by fostering greater coordination between institutional administrators, University 
Boards of Trustees and the Board of Governors regarding each institution’s direction and priorities 
as well as performance expectations and outcomes on institutional and System-wide goals. 

Once an Accountability Plan is approved by each institution’s respective Boards of Trustees, the 
Board of Governors will review and consider the plan for approval, excluding those sections of the 
Plan that require additional regulatory or procedural approval pursuant to law or Board regulations. 

Beginning with the 2023 Accountability Plans, all universities must comply with Recommendation II 
of the Board’s Civil Discourse Final Report adopted by the Board in January 2022.  
Recommendation II recommends that “each university's Accountability Plan … include a specific 
endorsement of the Board's Statement of Free Expression, as well as a clear expectation for open-
minded and tolerant civil discourse throughout the campus community.”  This statement may 
appear in any of these narrative portions:  Mission, Statement of Strategy; or Strengths, 
Opportunities, and Challenges. 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 4 

STRATEGY 
Mission Statement 

New College of Florida enrolls intellectually ambitious and talented students and, through unfettered intellectual inquiry 
and debate, provides them with a traditional liberal arts education.  This education is strategically designed to allow 
students to examine what it means to be a human with all the beauty and challenges that this entails.  This objective 
purposefully includes, but is not limited to, that employers competitively recruit them for their abilities in both hard and 
soft skills immediately upon graduation.  Through their education at New College, students will build upon their innate 
talents and abilities as humans to be creative, analytical, knowledgeable, forward- thinking, curious, humble, and 
empathetic.  

New College of Florida promotes a climate of free expression and tolerant civil discourse according to the principles set 
forth in the State University System Free Expression Statement and the Board of Governors Civil Discourse Final Report. 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 5 

To be the number one liberal arts college in the nation we must move quickly and strategically. To realize our full 
potential as a national leader, New College of Florida will implement the following strategies: 

1. Enrollment Growth
Students. Students. Students.
Our historical enrollment is unacceptable. We currently sit at 691 and have never been beyond 875. Our
historical freshman enrollment hovers around 200. This will change.

2. Increase Funding
Money. Money. Money.
New College has not excelled at raising funds publicly or privately. This too will change. Successful fundraising
allows us to rebuild to excellence, to recruit students, and to recruit faculty.

3. Add world-class faculty
New College should expand its faculty.  While it has many excellent members on staff, this can be added to
through intentional and sustained recruitment.

4. Strengthen quality and reputation of academic programs.
New College needs to have a defined curriculum that is crafted to achieve the aim of the liberal arts education:
to teach students how to think.  Students who graduate from New College should immediately be recognizable
to employers as having the hard and soft skillsets needed to enhance their organizations.  To do this, the
college course progression should intentionally build students’ abilities to think critically on any issue, as well
as understand the challenges and the beauty that inherently result from being human.

The course progression should not be so broad as to be meaningless, a chaotic hodgepodge of courses that are
unrelated in a strategic way to accomplishing these aims. New College will work to bring its programs and
course offerings into alignment with its mission and goals.

5. Be a beacon for free speech to the nation.
New College aims to serve as a beacon of free speech, free inquiry, and free debate in Florida and beyond.
First, New College will ensure that it follows the Chicago Principles, adopted by the State University System in
Florida in 2019, because “without a vibrant commitment to free and open inquiry, a university ceases to be a
university.”  Second, New College will institute a segment of the required freshman orientation segment which
addresses the importance of free speech and inquiry at New College.  Third, New College will host symposiums
with nationally recognized speakers on topics relating to the status of free speech nationally and around the
world.

6. Uniquely prepare our students to conquer the world.
New College embraces the power of relationships and community.   At a time when more and more
universities move large numbers of students through classes without any real opportunity for 1:1 faculty
engagement, New College has never wavered from the authentic relationships among our faculty, students,
and staff that are essential to learning.  It is crucial that New College students engage with the community
through coursework, internships, independent studies, and senior thesis projects. These relationships are the
building blocks that strengthen our academic experience for a student at New College.

Statement of Strategy 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 6 

STRATEGY (cont.) 
Strengths, Opportunities & Challenges 

As Florida’s designated honors college, New College of Florida provides an affordable, high-quality educational 
experience that consistently ranks among the top public liberal arts and sciences colleges in the nation.  To fully 
realize our potential, we must address serious challenges: 

(1) Attracting students.  To do this, New College needs to improve its academic offerings, marketing,
infrastructure, co-curriculars, extracurriculars, student life, and food options.

(2) Improving infrastructure. New College must improve its infrastructure by adding additional buildings, as
well as renovating existing buildings.  Inadequate residence halls, aging academic spaces, and growing
deferred maintenance make it difficult to recruit top students and faculty.  Our technological infrastructure
also fails to meet the expectations of students and employees.

(3) Improving student life.  New College has not historically provided a strong student life experience outside
of the classroom.  To meet student expectations, we must add an athletics program, improve the
residential experience, ensure quality of food program and add more food options, and provide campus
events that enhance the college experience.

The investment from the Legislature affords us the opportunity to address these challenges and position New 
College of Florida as the number one Liberal Arts Honors College in the nation. 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 7 

To increase student enrollment, retention, graduation rates, and post-graduation success, New College of Florida is 
investing in growing students in the following: 

(1) Increasing scholarships

Increasing FTIC and transfers through new articulation agreements and enhanced financial aid packages.

(2) Improving student experience

The waterfront site and historical buildings provide New College with one of the most beautiful
geographical locations for a college in the nation.  Students will be drawn to this with addition of amenities
that enhance the students’ quality of life, including housing updates, improving food quality and
availability, and a new investment in athletics.

(3) Becoming the top liberal-arts college in the nation

First, New College will be a traditional liberal arts college in that it purposefully prepares students to think
about the human condition through the reading the greatest writers throughout history that have
struggled to define this condition and answer its challenges.  We aim for students to live an examined life.
This is the foundation for preparing an educated person to go out into the world and wrestle with the
issues that will face him or her in their personal and professional lives.

Second, New College will use this foundation to ensure that every student graduates with the ability to do
something of value, as measured by their own personal goals, as well as wages.  Courses that aim to
provide these skills will go beyond the technical content in order to teach mindsets, not merely skillsets, so
that students are prepared for a rapidly changing world, including the advancement of AI.    With these
two goals, we are creating a curriculum scope and sequence.

Third, we are recruiting, hiring, training, and investing in the development of world-class faculty that are in
alignment with these aims.

No other college or university in the country has implemented such a forward-thinking program,
combining the best of the past and the promise of the future, and the uniqueness and marketability of its
graduates will draw students to its program.

(4) Infrastructure.

Beyond taking care of some deferred maintenance, we are investing in top-notch facilities — residence
halls and academic/mixed-use spaces — and best-in-class technology.  Our goal is for the appearance and
usefulness of our physical campus to match the quality of our academic program.

Three Key Initiatives & Investments 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 8 

STRATEGY (cont.) 
Graduation Rate Improvement Plan Update 

Academic Contract System and Block Tuition Model 

New College of Florida’s block tuition academic contract system — a system that charges full-time students the 
same tuition regardless of how many credit hours they attempt — incentivizes students to complete their 
degrees within four years. The effectiveness of this system is evidenced by: 

• 86% of degrees awarded without excess hours

• 80% of resident undergraduate students completing at least 15 credit hours in Fall 2021

• An average net cost of -$8,360 (-$14,510 including federal emergency funds) for a bachelor’s degree
(tuition, fees, books, and supplies)

Actions Taken in 2022-23 

To further improve graduation rates, New College of Florida implemented its Student Success Plan initiatives: 

(1) We started conferring degrees in January and August.  This allows students who complete their degree
requirements in Fall or Summer to earn their degrees in a timely manner.

(2) We awarded $200,000 in retention and completion scholarships to resolve short-term financial
hardships before they became barriers to a student’s ability to graduate on-time.  Every student who
received a completion scholarship in Fall 2022 graduated, demonstrating a tremendous return on
investment.  Furthermore, 37 of 38 students receiving retention scholarships in Fall 2022 were retained
into Spring 2023.

(3) We opened a One-Stop Shop with staff from the Offices of the Registrar, Finance, and Financial Aid to
quickly resolve student concerns and improve quality service.



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 9 

Student Achievements 
- Third-year student Michael Bolesh was selected as a Boren scholar, joining the French component of

the African Flagship Language Initiative (AFLI) to study in Dakar.

- Since 2005, NCF has produced 26 NSF Graduate Research Fellowship awardees and 9 honorable mentions.
This year, three students were recognized for this prestigious five-year award for STEM graduate studies:

• Corinne Laughrey:  Physics and Astronomy - Astronomy and Astrophysics
• Mason Tedeschi:  STEM Education and Learning Research - Science Education
• Elizabeth White:  Life Sciences - Evolutionary Biology (Honorable Mention)

- Three students presented research at the 2023 NCUR (National Conference on Undergraduate Research):
• Francis FenandezGarcia - “Indigenous Representation in International Organizations: How Arctic

Indigenous Peoples Cooperate to Address Climate Change”
• Qadira Locke - "Women's Fashion and Sumptuary Laws in the Joseon Dynasty Korea (1392-1897)”
• Sydney Haas - “The Measurement of Nitrates and Phosphates in the Sarasota Bay"

Faculty Achievements 
- Jayne Gardiner (Biology and Director of NCF’s Pritzker Marine Biology Research Center) was named a rotating

program director for the Biological Oceanography Program of the National Science Foundation.

- Xia Shi (History and International Studies) earned a Fulbright award to carry out research in Taiwan for her
next book Concubines in Public: Embodied Subjects and the Politics of the Private in Republican China.

- Robert Zamsky (English) earned the 2020 Elizabeth Agee Award in American Literature for his forthcoming
book, Orphic Bend: Music and Innovative Poetics.

- Yidong Gong (Anthropology and International & Area Studies) earned one of fifteen Luce/ACLS Early Career
Fellowships in China Studies for a book project offering an analysis of medicine from China in South Sudan.

Program Achievements 
- NCF’s Applied Data Science program ranked #25 on Fortune Magazine’s list of best data science programs.

- NCF’s one-stop shop, the START Center, was recognized with the Distinction Award for Student Experience at
the Transact 360 Conference.

- The Society for Analytical Chemists of Pittsburgh awarded NCF’s chemistry program an Undergraduate
Analytical Research Program Grant for red tide research.

- The Chronicle of Higher Education highlighted NCF’s innovative career preparation program in a report
entitled New Pathways from College to Career.

Institutional Achievements 
- New College of Florida maintained its status as a top-ranked liberal arts college:

o #5 among public liberal arts colleges (U.S. News & World Report)
 Also #40 most innovative, #49 best value, and #52 in social mobility

o #4 among public liberal arts colleges (Washington Monthly)
o #29 best value public college (Princeton Review)

 Also #3 for making an impact, #7 in financial aid, and #7 best alumni network
o Top 10 best buy public college (Fiske Guide)

STRATEGY (cont.) 
Key Achievements for Last Year (Student, Faculty, Program, Institutional) 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 10 

STRATEGY (cont.) 
Performance-Based Funding Goal Adjustments 

Metric 9a: FCS AA Transfer Three-Year Graduation Rate 
Although we project a second consecutive year of improvement to our annual three-year graduation rate for FCS 
AA transfers in 2023-24, we’re likely to see a decline in the rolling three-year average of these graduation rates.  
The use of a rolling three-year average distorts our actual performance and is likely to again cost us improvement 
points on this metric. 

PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS 
1. Percent of Bachelor’s Graduates Enrolled or Employed ($40,000+)

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

ACTUAL . . . 52.3 50.4 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . . . . . . . . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 52 54 56 58 60 
Note: In November 2022, the Board’s Budget and Finance Committee approved a change increase the wage threshold for graduates found 
employed from $30,000 to $40,000.  Due to the change in methodology, outcomes for graduates prior to 2019-20 are not available. 

2. Median Wages of Bachelor’s Graduates Employed Full-time
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

ACTUAL 25,900 29,700 36,500 32,400 34,900 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 27,400 28,000 31,000 36,000 37,000 38,000 39,000 40,000 41,000 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 38,000 39,000 40,000 41,000 42,000 

PBF Metric #3 Note: Beginning Spring 2020, The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) has provided institutions with gift aid for students that can be 

used until the 2022-23 academic year.  Since these funds are non-recurring, the reporting of the Average Cost to the 
Student metric in the 2023 Accountability Plan will reflect the Average Cost to the Student with and without HEERF 
federal emergency grants.  The Board of Governors will evaluate year-over-year improvement in 2025, when the 

federal emergency funds are no longer available (in 2022-23).  

3.1 .  Average Cost to the Student [includes federal emergency funds] 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20* 2020-21* 2021-22* 2022-23* 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL -1,060 -1,340 -2,120 -4,500 -14,510 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 6,750 6,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 11 

3.2 .  Average Cost to the Student [excludes federal emergency funds] 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL -1,060 -1,340 -560 -1,330 -8,360 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . . . . . . . . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 

PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS (cont.)

4. FTIC Four-Year Graduation Rate [Full-time, First Time in College students]

2014-18 2015-19 2016-20 2017-21 2018-22 2019-23 2020-24 2021-25 2022-26 2023-27 

ACTUAL 55.7 57.9 53.9 55.3 58.3 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 55 57.5 60 54.8 57 59 62 66 67 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 59 62 66 67 68 

5. Academic Progress Rate [Second Fall Retention Rate with at Least a 2.0 GPA for Full-time FTIC students]

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 75.9 85.9 80.3 78.8 75.0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 80 80 82 80 82 84 85 86 87 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 84 85 86 87 88 

6. Percentage of Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded within Programs of Strategic Emphasis
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 48.0 52.6 57.9 46.2 50.6 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 51 50 52 43.7 50 50 50 50 50 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 50 50 50 50 50 

7. University Access Rate [Percent of Undergraduates with a Pell grant]

FALL 
2017 

FALL 
2018 

FALL 
2019 

FALL 
2020 

FALL 
2021 

FALL 
2022 

FALL 
2023 

FALL 
2024 

FALL 
2025 

FALL 
2026 

ACTUAL 33.3 31.7 28.4 30.4 30.0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 30 31 32 30 31 32 33 34 35 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 32 33 34 35 36 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 12 

PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS (cont.) 
8. Percentage of Newly Admitted FTICs with High School GPA of a 4.0 or Higher

FALL 
2018 

FALL 
2019 

FALL 
2020 

FALL 
2021 

FALL 
2022 

FALL 
2023 

FALL 
2024 

FALL 
2025 

FALL 
2026 

FALL 
2027 

ACTUAL 60.0 36.1 38.6 46.8 55.1 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . . . . . . . . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 55 56 57 58 59 
Note: In November 2022, the Board’s Budget and Finance Committee approved a change to this metric to replace the high school class rank of 
newly admitted FTIC students with high school grade point average. 

9a. BOG Choice: FCS AA Transfer Three-Year Graduation Rate [Full- and part-time students] 
2015-18* 2016-19* 2017-20* 2018-21* 2019-22* 2020-23 2021-24 2022-25 2023-26 2024-27 

ACTUAL 64.3 67.4 75.6 67.5 58.1 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . 66 62 64 66 68 70 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 64 66 68 70 71 
Note: House Bill 2524 passed during the 2022 Florida Legislative session changed this metric from a two-year graduation rate to a three-year 
graduation rate. An asterisk is shown where a three-year rolling average has been used until cohort reaches at least 25 for three consecutive 
cohorts. 

9b. BOG Choice: FTIC Pell Recipient Six-Year Graduation Rate [Full- and part-time students]   
2012-18 2013-19 2014-20 2015-21 2016-22 2017-23 2018-24 2019-25 2020-26 2021-27 

ACTUAL 60.0 62.1 60.6 65.2 57.4 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . 68.4 55 60 62 64 65 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 60 62 64 65 66 

10. BOT Choice: Percent of FTIC Graduates Completing 3+ High-Impact Practices
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 57.9 65.7 86.2 93.1 93.0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 55 55 59 90 90 90 90 90 90 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 90 90 90 90 90 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 13 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Teaching & Learning (from the 2025 System Strategic Plan not included in PBF section) 

1. Public University National Ranking [Number of Top50 Rankings based on BOG’s official list of publications]

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 

ACTUAL 5 4 4 4 4 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 4 4 4 4 4 

2. Freshmen in Top 10% of High School Class
FALL 
2018 

FALL 
2019 

FALL 
2020 

FALL 
2021 

FALL 
2022 

FALL 
2023 

FALL 
2024 

FALL 
2025 

FALL 
2026 

FALL 
2027 

ACTUAL 37 22 25 21 29 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 41 40 30 25 25 25 25 25 25 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 25 25 25 25 25 

3. Time to Degree for FTICs in 120hr programs
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.9 4.0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 

4. Percent of Baccalaureate Degrees Awarded Without Excess Hours
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 83 87 82 82 86 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 83 83 84 80 82 83 84 85 86 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 83 84 85 86 87 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 14 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (cont.) 
Teaching & Learning (from the 2025 System Strategic Plan not included in PBF section) 

5. Six-Year FTIC Graduation Rates [Full-& Part-time students]

2012-18 2013-19 2014-20 2015-21 2016-22 2017-23 2018-24 2019-25 2020-26 2021-27 

ACTUAL 60 64 64 66 63 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 60.5 62 64 66 59 60 65 70 71 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 60 65 70 71 72 

6. FCS AA Transfer Two-Year Graduation Rate [Full-time students]

2016-18* 2017-19* 2018-20* 2019-21* 2020-22* 2021-23 2022-24 2023-25 2024-26 2025-27 

ACTUAL 26 29 25 23 21 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . 22 24 27 33 40 50 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 27 33 40 50 55 
Note: An asterisk is shown where a three-year rolling average has been used until cohort reaches at least 25 for three consecutive cohorts. 

7. Pell Recipient Four-Year Graduation Rate [for Full-Time FTIC]

2014-18 2015-19 2016-20 2017-21 2018-22 2019-23 2020-24 2021-25 2022-26 2023-27 

ACTUAL 51 55 47 54 50 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . 60 50 50 55 60 62 64 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 51 53 55 57 59 

8. Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded [First Majors Only]

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 177 213 183 158 156 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 180 190 200 158 160 150 150 170 175 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 139 140 150 175 190 

9. Graduate Degrees Awarded [First Majors Only]

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 7 16 9 12 16 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 7 15 10 12 16 8 12 20 25 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 7 8 10 20 30 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 15 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (cont.) 
Teaching & Learning (from the 2025 System Strategic Plan not included in PBF section) 

10. Percentage of Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded to African-American & Hispanic Students
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 20 13 22 15 26 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 22 22 20 15 25 26 27 28 29 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 19 27 28 29 30 

11. Percentage of Adult (Aged 25+) Undergraduates Enrolled
FALL 
2018 

FALL 
2019 

FALL 
2020 

FALL 
2021 

FALL 
2022 

FALL 
2023 

FALL 
2024 

FALL 
2025 

FALL 
2026 

FALL 
2027 

ACTUAL 3 3 5 6 5 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 1 2 2 4 4 5 5 5 5 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 5 5 5 5 5 

12. Percent of Bachelor’s Degrees in STEM & Health
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 40 38 46 38 42 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 41 42 43 37 38 39 40 41 42 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 39 40 41 42 43 

13. Percent of Graduate Degrees in STEM & Health
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 100 100 100 100 100 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 100 100 100 100 100 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 16 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (cont.) 
Scholarship, Research & Innovation Metrics 

14. National Academy Memberships
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 

ACTUAL 0 0 0 0 0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 

15. Faculty Awards
FALL 
2016 

FALL 
2017 

FALL 
2018 

FALL 
2019 

FALL 
2020 

FALL 
2021 

FALL 
2022 

FALL 
2023 

FALL 
2024 

FALL 
2025 

ACTUAL 0 0 0 0 N/A . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 

Note: The Center for Measuring University Performance’s “Top American Research Universities,” report used for this metric has been discontinued. 

16. Percent of Undergraduates Engaged in Research
SPRING 

2018 
SPRING 

2019 
SPRING 

2020 
SPRING 

2021 
SPRING 

2022 
SPRING 

2023 
SPRING 

2024 
SPRING 

2025 
SPRING 

2026 
SPRING 

2027 
ACTUAL . . 100 100 100 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . . . 100 100 100 100 100 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 100 100 100 100 100 

17. Total Research Expenditures ($Thousands)
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 875 962 999 960 1,252 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 1,100 1,300 1,000 970 1,000 1,100 1,150 1,200 1,250 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 1,250 1,300 1,350 1,400 1,450 

18. Research Expenditures from External Sources ($Thousands)
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

ACTUAL 492 606 455 495 855 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . . 615 430 550 625 700 800 850 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 800 850 900 950 1,000 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 17 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (cont.) 
Scholarship, Research & Innovation Metrics 

19. Utility Patents Awarded
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

ACTUAL 0 0 0 0 0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 

20. Number of Licenses/Options Executed Annually
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

ACTUAL 0 0 0 0 0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 

21. Number of Start-up Companies Created
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

ACTUAL 0 0 0 0 0 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 18 

ENROLLMENT PLANNING 
Fall Headcount Enrollment by Student Level [all degree-seeking students, all campuses] 

UNDERGRADUATE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

ACTUAL 808 703 646 633 671 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 860 825 710 592 610 630 660 710 750 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 660 680 725 780 880 

GRADUATE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

ACTUAL 29 24 29 27 20 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS 30 35 32 28 20 35 40 40 50 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 20 30 40 50 50 

Fall Headcount Enrollment by Student Type [all degree-seeking students, all campuses] 
UNDERGRADUATE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

FTIC: New 197 150 159 165 193 195 200 235 270 320 

FTIC: Returning 496 457 389 368 346 350 350 350 360 400 

Transfer: FCS w/ AA 41 30 36 35 39 40 50 55 60 65 

Other Undergraduates 74 64 58 61 86 70 75 80 85 90 

Post-Baccalaureates 0 2 4 4 7 5 5 5 5 5 

Subtotal 808 703 646 633 671 660 680 725 780 880 

GRADUATE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

Master’s 29 24 29 27 20 20 30 40 50 50 

Research Doctoral 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional Doctoral 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 29 24 29 27 20 20 30 40 50 50 

TOTAL 837 727 675 660 691 680 710 765 830 930 

Note: This table reports this number of students enrolled by student type categories. These headcounts only include those seeking a degree – 
unclassified students (e.g., dual enrolled) are not included.  The student type for undergraduates is based on the ‘Type of Student at Most 
Recent Admission’.  The First Time in College (FTIC) student was admitted in the same fall term or in the preceding summer term – this includes 
those who were re-admitted as FTICs.  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 19 

ENROLLMENT PLANNING (cont.) 
Percent of Baccalaureate-Seeking Resident Undergraduates Earning 15+ Credits [Fall term] 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

ACTUAL 82 86 82 79 80 . . . . . 

APPROVED GOALS . 83 84 85 80 80 80 80 80 . 

PROPOSED GOALS . . . . . 80 80 80 80 80 

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Enrollment by Course Level 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2028-29 

LOWER 227 233 147 167 164 203 205 210 247 284 336 
UPPER 710 646 617 543 521 526 511 528 539 561 616 
GRAD 1 21 20 18 22 18 14 14 21 29 36 36 
GRAD 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TOTAL 957 899 782 732 703 743 730 759 815 881 988 

Note: Full-time Equivalent (FTE) student is a measure of all instructional activity (regardless of fundability) that is based on the number of credit 
hours for all students during an academic (summer, fall, spring) year.  FTE is based on the standard national definition, which divides 
undergraduate credit hours by 30 and graduate credit hours by 24. Pursuant to section 1013.31, Florida Statutes, Board facilities staff use this 
data as a key factor in the calculation of facility space needs for university educational plant surveys. 

Percent FTE Enrollment by Method of Instruction 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 

UNDERGRADUATE 
All Distance (100%) 0 0 0 44 3 5 5 5 5 5 
Primarily Dist. (80-99%) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Flex 0 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Hybrid (50-79%) 0 0 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Classroom (0-49%) 100 100 100 5 97 95 95 95 95 95 

GRADUATE 
All Distance (100%) 0 0 0 25 22 25 25 30 30 35 
Primarily Dist. (80-99%) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Flex 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Hybrid (50-79%) 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Classroom (0-49%) 100 100 100 32 78 75 75 70 70 65 

Note: Effective for the Fall 2020 term, Board staff added a new FLEX value to capture the course sections in which there is a mix of modalities 
within the same course section that allows students the option to switch between the modalities during the term. See definitions sections for a 
detailed description. 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 20 

ACADEMIC PROGRAM COORDINATION 
New Programs for Consideration by Institution in AY 2023-24 
The SUS Council of Academic Vice Presidents Academic Program Coordination Work Group will review these 
programs as part of their on-going coordination efforts. The programs listed below are based on the 2022 
Accountability Plan list for programs under consideration for 2023-24. 

PROGRAM TITLES CIP 
CODE 

AREA OF 
STRATEGIC 
EMPHASIS 

OTHER INST 
W/ SAME 

PROGRAM 

OFFERED 
VIA 

DISTANCE 
LEARNING IN 

SYSTEM 

PROJECTED 
ENROLLMENT 

IN 5TH YEAR 

PROPOSED 
DATE OF 

SUBMISSION 
TO UBOT 

UNDERGRADUATE 

MASTER’S, SPECIALIST AND OTHER ADVANCED MASTER’S PROGRAMS 

DOCTORAL PROGRAMS 
(none) 

New Programs for Consideration by Institution in AY 2024-26 
These programs will be used in the 2024 Accountability Plan list for programs under consideration for 2024-26. 

PROGRAM TITLES CIP 
CODE 

AREA OF 
STRATEGIC 
EMPHASIS 

OTHER INST 
W/ SAME 

PROGRAM 

OFFERED 
VIA 

DISTANCE 
LEARNING IN 

SYSTEM 

PROJECTED 
ENROLLMENT 

IN 5TH YEAR 

PROPOSED 
DATE OF 

SUBMISSION 
TO UBOT 

UNDERGRADUATE 

MASTER’S, SPECIALIST AND OTHER ADVANCED MASTER’S PROGRAMS 

DOCTORAL PROGRAMS 
(none) 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 21 

DEFINITIONS 
Performance Based Funding (PBF) 

PBF-1. Percent of Bachelor's Graduates Enrolled or Employed ($40,000+) One Year After Graduation:  This metric is 
based on the percentage of a graduating class of bachelor’s degree recipients who are enrolled or employed (earning 
at least $40,000) somewhere in the United States. This data includes non-Florida data from all states and districts, 
including the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico; and military enlistment as reported by the institutions.  Students 
who do not have valid social security numbers and are not found enrolled are excluded.  Students not found enrolled 
following graduation and/or employed are also excluded.  Sources:  State University Database System (SUDS), Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) analysis of State Wage Interchange System (SWIS), and National Student 
Clearinghouse (NSC). 

PBF-2. Median Wages of Bachelor’s Graduates Employed Full-Time One Year After Graduation:  This metric is based 
on annualized Unemployment Insurance (UI) wage data from the fourth fiscal quarter after graduation for bachelor’s 
recipients.  This data does not include individuals who are self-employed, employed by the military, those without a 
valid social security number, or making less than minimum wage.  This data now includes non-Florida data from all 
states and districts, including the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico.  Sources:  State University Database System 
(SUDS) and Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) analysis of State Wage Interchange System (SWIS). 

PBF-3. Cost to the Student Net Tuition & Fees for Resident Undergraduates per 120 Credit Hours:  This metric 
compares the average sticker price and the average gift aid amount.  The sticker price includes:  (1) tuition and fees for 
resident undergraduates; (2) books and supplies (we use a proxy as calculated by the College Board); and (3) the 
average number of credit hours attempted by students who were admitted as an FTIC student who graduated with a 
bachelor’s degree from a program that requires only 120 credit hours.  The gift aid amount includes:  (1) financial aid 
(grants, scholarships, waivers and third-party payments) provided to resident undergraduate students during the most 
recent academic year; (2) the total number of credit hours for those resident undergraduates.  The average gift aid 
award per credit hour was multiplied by 120 and compared to the sticker price.  Sources:  State University Database 
System (SUDS), the Legislature’s annual General Appropriations Act, and university required fees as approved by the 
Florida Board of Governors. 

PBF-4. Four Year FTIC Graduation Rate:  This metric is based on the percentage of first-time-in-college (FTIC) students 
who started in the fall (or summer continuing to fall) term and were enrolled full-time in their first semester and had 
graduated from the same institution by the summer term of their fourth year.  FTIC includes ‘early admit’ students 
who were admitted as a degree-seeking student prior to high school graduation.  Students who were enrolled in 
advanced graduate programs during their 4th year were excluded.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS). 

PBF-5. Academic Progress Rate [2nd Year Retention with 2.0 GPA or Above]:  This metric is based on the percentage 
of first-time-in-college (FTIC) students who started in the fall (or summer continuing to fall) term and were enrolled 
full-time in their first semester and were still enrolled in the same institution during the next fall term with a grade 
point average (GPA) of at least 2.0 at the end of their first year (fall, spring, summer).  Source:  State University 
Database System (SUDS). 



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 22 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
PBF-6:  Bachelor's Degrees within Programs of Strategic Emphasis:  This metric is based on the number of 
baccalaureate degrees awarded within the programs designated by the Board of Governors as ‘Programs of Strategic 
Emphasis.’  A student who has multiple majors in the subset of targeted Classification of Instruction Program codes will 
be counted twice (i.e., double-majors are included).  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

PBF-7:  University Access Rate Percent of Undergraduates with a Pell Grant:  This metric is based the number of 
undergraduates enrolled during the fall term who received a Pell Grant during the fall term.  Students who were not 
eligible for Pell Grants (e.g., unclassified, non-resident aliens, post-baccalaureate students) were excluded from the 
denominator for this metric.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).    

PBF-8a:  Graduate Degrees within Programs of Strategic Emphasis:  This metric is based on the number of graduate 
degrees awarded within the programs designated by the Board of Governors as ‘Programs of Strategic Emphasis.’  A 
student who has multiple majors in the subset of targeted Classification of Instruction Program codes will be counted 
twice (i.e., double majors are included).  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

PBF-8b:  Percentage of Newly Admitted FTICs with High School GPA of a 4.0 or Higher: (Applies only to New College of 
Florida):  Percent of all degree-seeking, first-time, first-year (freshman) students who had a high school grade point 
average of a 4.0 or higher.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS). 

PBF-9a:  FCS AA Transfer Three-Year Graduation Rate [Full- and part-time students]:  This transfer cohort is defined 
as undergraduates entering in fall term (or summer continuing to fall) from the Florida College System with an 
Associate in Arts (AA) degree.  The rate is the percentage of the initial cohort that has either graduated from the same 
institution by the summer term of their third academic year.  Both full-time and part-time students are used in the 
calculation.  Students who were flagged as enrolled in advanced graduate programs that would not earn a bachelor’s 
degree are excluded.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

PBF-9b:  FTIC Pell Recipient Six-Year Graduation Rate [Full- and Part-time students]:  This metric is based on the 
percentage of first-time-in-college (FTIC) students who started in the fall (or summer continuing to fall) term and were 
enrolled full-or part-time in their first semester and who received a Pell Grant during their first year (summer to spring) 
and who graduated from the same institution by the summer term of their sixth year.  Students who were flagged as 
enrolled in advanced graduate programs that would not earn a bachelor’s degree were excluded.  Source:  State 
University Database System (SUDS).  

PBF-10. FAMU:  Number of Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded to Transfers with AA Degrees from FCS:  This is a count of 
first-major baccalaureate degrees awarded to students who entered as FCS AA Transfers. First majors include the most 
common scenario of one student earning one degree in one Classification of Instructional Programs (CIP) code.  A 
student who earns two baccalaureate degrees under two different degree CIPs is counted twice.  Source:  State 
University Database System (SUDS). 

PBF-10. FAU:  Total Research Expenditures:  Total expenditures for all research activities, including non-science and 
engineering activities.  Source:  As reported by each institution to the National Science Foundation annual survey of 
Higher Education Research and Development (HERD) based on the NSF rules and definitions.  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 23 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
PBF-10. FGCU:  Number of Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded to Hispanic & African Americans:  Race/Ethnicity data is 
self-reported by students to the university.  This includes students who self-select Hispanic, Non-Hispanic African 
Americans, and those who select multiple races, including Black/African American. Degree data is based on first-major 
counts only; second majors are not included.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS). 

PBF-10. FIU:  Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees:  The number of postdoctoral appointees awarded annually.  
Source:  National Science Foundation/National Institutes of Health Survey of Graduate Students and Postdoctorates in 
Science and Engineering (GSS). 

PBF-10. FPOLY:  Percent of Bachelor’s Graduates with 2 or more Workforce Experiences:  The percentage of 
Bachelor’s recipients who completed at least two of the following four workforce experiences:  external internships, 
industry-sponsored capstone projects, undergraduate research (from an externally funded research grant), and 
certifications.  Source:  Florida Polytechnic University student survey data reported to the Florida Board of Governors.  

PBF-10. FSU:  Number of Bachelor’s Graduates who passed an Entrepreneurship Class:  The number of Bachelor’s 
recipients who passed one or more graded Entrepreneurship courses before graduating and while not above Excess 
Hours.  Source:  Florida State University student survey data reported to the Florida Board of Governors. 

PBF-10. NCF:  Percent of FTIC Graduates Completing 3 or more High Impact Practices:  The percentage of graduating 
seniors who started as FTIC students and who complete three or more high-impact practices as defined by the 
National Survey of Student Engagement (NSSE) and the Association of American Colleges & Universities. High-impact 
practices include:  (1) capstone project or thesis, (2) internships, (3) study abroad, (4) writing-intensive courses, (5) 
living-learning communities, (6) undergraduate research, (7) first-year experience, (8) learning communities, (9) 
service-learning, and (10) collaborative projects.  Multiple activities within the same category only count once (e.g., a 
student completing three internships has completed one high impact practice).  Source:  New College of Florida 
student survey data reported to the Florida Board of Governors. 

PBF-10. UCF:  Percent of Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded to African American and Hispanic Students:  Percent of 
degrees is based on the number of baccalaureate degrees awarded to Hispanic and non-Hispanic African American 
students divided by the total degrees awarded - excluding those awarded to non-resident aliens and unreported.  
Source:  State University Database System (SUDS). 

PBF-10. UF:  Endowment Size (M):  Assets invested by an institution to support its educational mission.  Source:  
National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO) and Commonfund Institute's annual report 
of Market Value of Endowment Assets. 

PBF-10. UNF:  Percent of Undergraduate FTE in Online Courses:  Full-time equivalent (FTE) student is a measure of 
instructional activity that is based on the number of credit hours that students enroll.  FTE is based on the Integrated 
Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS) definition, which divides undergraduate credit hours by 30.  Online, or 
distance learning, courses provide at least 80 percent of the direct instruction using some form of technology when 
the student and instructor are separated by time or space, or both per Section 1009.24(17), Florida Statutes.  Source:  
State University Database System (SUDS).   



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 24 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
PBF-10. USF:  6-Year Graduation Rates (FT/PT):  The first-time-in-college (FTIC) cohort is defined as undergraduates 
entering in fall term (or summer continuing to fall) with fewer than 12 hours earned since high school graduation.  The 
rate is the percentage of the initial cohort that has either graduated from the same institution by the summer term of 
their sixth academic year.  Both full-time and part-time students are used in the calculation. FTIC includes ‘early 
admits’ students who were admitted as degree-seeking students prior to high school graduation.  Source:  State 
University Database System (SUDS).  

PBF-10. UWF:  Percent of Baccalaureate Graduates Completing 2+ Types of High-Impact Practices:  The percentage 
of graduating seniors completing two or more high-impact practices as defined by the Association of American 
Colleges & Universities.  High-impact practices include:  (1) first-year seminar & experiences, (2) common intellectual 
experience, (3) writing-intensive courses, (4) collaborative assignments & projects, (5) diversity/global learning, (6) 
ePortolios, (7) service learning, community-based learning, (8) internships, (9) capstone courses & projects.  Multiple 
activities within the same category only count once (e.g., a student completing three internships has completed one 
high-impact practice).  Source:  University of West Florida student data reported to the Florida Board of Governors. 

Preeminence Research University (PRE) 

PRE-A:  Average GPA & Average SAT:  An average weighted grade point average of 4.0 or higher on a 4.0 scale and an 
average SAT score of 1200 or higher on a 1600-point scale or an average ACT score of 25 or higher on a 36 score scale, 
using the latest published national concordance table developed jointly by the College Board and ACT, Inc., for fall 
semester incoming freshmen, as reported annually. 

PRE-B:  National University Rankings:  A top-50 ranking on at least two well-known and highly respected national 
public university rankings, reflecting national preeminence, using the most recent rankings.  Sources:  Princeton 
Review, Fiske Guide, QS World University Ranking, Times Higher Education World University Ranking, Academic 
Ranking of World University, U.S. News and World Report National University, U.S. News and World Report National 
Public University, U.S. News and World Report Liberal Arts Colleges, Forbes, Washington Monthly Liberal Arts Colleges, 
Washington Monthly National University, and the Center for Measuring University Performance. 

PRE-C:  Freshmen Retention Rate:  Freshman Retention Rate (full-time, FTIC) cohorts are based on first-year 
undergraduate students who enter the institution in the fall term (or summer term and continue into the fall term). 
Percent retained is based on those who are enrolled during the second fall term.  Source:  State University Database 
System (SUDS). 

PRE-D:  4-year Graduation Rate:  This metric is based on the percentage of first-time-in-college (FTIC) students who 
started in the fall (or summer continuing to fall) term and were enrolled full-time in their first semester and had 
graduated from the same institution by the summer term of their fourth year.  FTIC includes ‘early admit’ students 
who were admitted as degree-seeking students prior to high school graduation.  Students who were enrolled in 
advanced graduate programs during their 4th year were excluded.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 25 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
PRE-E:  National Academy Memberships:  National Academy Memberships held by faculty.  Source:  The Center for 
Measuring University Performance in the Top American Research Universities (TARU) annual report or the official 
membership directories maintained by each national academy. 

PRE-F:  Total Science & Engineering Research Expenditures:  Research expenditures within Science & Engineering 
disciplines.  Source:  As reported by each institution to the National Science Foundation (NSF) annual survey of Higher 
Education Research and Development (HERD) based on the NSF rules and definitions.  

PRE-G:  Science & Engineering Research Expenditures in Non-Health Sciences:  Research expenditures within Science 
& Engineering in non-medical sciences.  Source:  As reported by each institution to the National Science Foundation 
annual survey of Higher Education Research and Development (HERD) based on the NSF rules and definitions. 

PRE-H:  National Ranking in Research Expenditures:  The NSF identifies eight broad disciplines within Science & 
Engineering:  Computer Science, Engineering, Environmental Science, Life Science, Mathematical Sciences, Physical 
Sciences, Psychology, and Social Sciences.  The rankings by discipline are determined by BOG staff using the NSF online 
database. 

PRE-I:  Patents Awarded:  Total utility patents awarded for the most recent three calendar year period.  Based on 
legislative staff guidance, Board staff query the USPTO database with a query that only counts utility patents:  
"(AN/"University Name" AND ISD/yyyymmdd->yyyymmdd AND APT/1)".  Source:  United States Patent and Trademark 
Office (USPTO). 

PRE-J:  Doctoral Degrees Awarded Annually:  Includes doctoral research degrees and professional doctoral degrees 
awarded in medical and health care disciplines.  Also includes veterinary medicine.  Source:  State University Database 
System (SUDS).   

PRE-K:  Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees:  The number of postdoctoral appointees awarded annually.  Source:  
National Science Foundation/National Institutes of Health Survey of Graduate Students and Postdoctorates in Science 
and Engineering (GSS). 

PRE-L:  Endowment Size (M):  Assets invested by an institution to support its educational mission.  Source:  National 
Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO) and Commonfund Institute's annual report of 
Market Value of Endowment Assets. 

Key Performance Indicators (KPI) 
KPI-1:  Public University National Ranking:  A top-50 ranking on at least two well-known and highly respected national 
public university rankings, reflecting national preeminence, using the most recent rankings.  Sources:  Princeton 
Review, Fiske Guide, QS World University Ranking, Times Higher Education World University Ranking, Academic 
Ranking of World University, U.S. News and World Report National University, U.S. News and World Report National 
Public University, U.S. News and World Report Liberal Arts Colleges, Forbes, Washington Monthly Liberal Arts Colleges, 
Washington Monthly National University, and Center for Measuring University Performance. 

KPI-2:  Freshmen in Top 10% of High School Class:  Percent of all degree-seeking, first-time, first-year (freshman) 
students who had high school class rank within the top 10% of their graduating high school class.  Source:  As reported 
by each university on the Common Data Set.  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 26 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
KPI-3:  Time to Degree for FTICs in 120hr programs:  This metric is the number of years between the start date (using 
the student entry date) and the end date (using the last month in the term degree was granted) for a graduating class 
of first-time, single-major baccalaureates in 120 credit hour programs within a (summer, fall, spring) year.  Source:  
State University Database System (SUDS).   

KPI-4:  Percent of Bachelor's Degrees Without Excess Hours:  This metric is based on the percentage of baccalaureate 
degrees awarded within 110% of the credit hours required for a degree based on the Board of Governors Academic 
Program Inventory.  This metric excludes the following types of student credits:  accelerated mechanisms, remedial 
coursework, non-native credit hours that are not used toward the degree, non-native credit hours from failed, 
incomplete, withdrawn, or repeated courses, credit hours from internship programs, credit hours up to 10 foreign 
language credit hours, and credit hours earned in military science courses that are part of the Reserve Officers’ 
Training Corps (ROTC) program.  Starting in 2018-19, the calculation for this metric included a new type of statutory 
exclusion of up to 12 credit hours for students who graduated in four years or less.  This metric does not report the 
number of students who paid the “Excess Hour Surcharge” (Section 1009.286, Florida Statutes).  Source:  State 
University Database System (SUDS). 

KPI-5:  Six-Year FTIC Graduation Rates [full-& part-time students]:  The first-time-in-college (FTIC) cohort is defined 
as undergraduates entering in fall term (or summer continuing to fall) with fewer than 12 hours earned since high 
school graduation.  The rate is the percentage of the initial cohort that has either graduated from the same institution 
by the summer term of their sixth academic year.  Both full-time and part-time students are used in the calculation. 
FTIC includes ‘early admits’ students who were admitted as degree-seeking students prior to high school graduation.  
Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-6:  FCS AA Transfer Two-Year Graduation Rate [full-time students]:  This transfer cohort is defined as 
undergraduates entering in fall term (or summer continuing to fall) from the Florida College System with an Associate 
in Arts (AA) degree.  The rate is the percentage of the initial cohort that has either graduated from the same institution 
by the summer term of their second academic year.  Only full-time students are used in the calculation.  Students who 
were flagged as enrolled in advanced graduate programs in their 2nd year were excluded.  Source: State University 
Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-7:  Pell Recipient Four-Year Graduation Rate [for full-time FTIC]:  This metric is based on the percentage of first-
time-in-college (FTIC) students who started in the fall (or summer continuing to fall) term and were enrolled full-time 
in their first semester and who received a Pell Grant during their first year and who graduated from the same 
institution by the summer term of their fourth year.  FTIC includes ‘early admit’ students who were admitted as 
degree-seeking students prior to high school graduation.  Students who were flagged as enrolled in advanced graduate 
programs that would not earn a bachelor’s degree were excluded.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-8:  Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded & KPI-9: Graduate Degrees Awarded:  This is a count of first-major 
baccalaureate and graduate degrees awarded.  First majors include the most common scenario of one student earning 
one degree in one Classification of Instructional Programs (CIP) code.  In cases where a student earns a baccalaureate 
degree under two different degree CIPs, a distinction is made between “dual degrees” and “dual majors.”  Also 
included in first majors are “dual degrees,” which are counted as separate degrees (e.g., counted twice).  In these 
cases, both degree CIPs receive a “degree fraction” of 1.0.  The calculation of degree fractions is made according to 
each institution’s criteria.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 27 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
KPI-10:  Bachelor’s Degrees Awarded to African-American & Hispanic Students:  Race/Ethnicity data is self-reported 
by students to each university.  The non-Hispanic, African-American, and Hispanic categories do not include students 
classified as Non-Resident Alien or students with a missing race code.  Degree data is based on first-major counts only; 
second majors are excluded.  Percentage of degrees is based on the number of baccalaureate degrees awarded to 
non-Hispanic African-American and Hispanic students divided by the total degrees awarded, excluding those awarded 
to non-resident aliens and unreported.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-11:  Percentage of Adult (Aged 25+) Undergraduates Enrolled:  This metric is based on the age of the student at 
the time of their fall term enrollment, not their age upon entry.  As a proxy, age is based on birth year, not birth date. 
Unclassified students with a high school diploma (or GED) and above are included in this calculation.  Source: State 
University Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-12:  Percent of Bachelor’s Degrees in STEM & Health & KPI-13: Percent of Graduate Degrees in STEM & Health:  
The percentage of degrees that are classified as STEM or Health disciplines by the Board of Governors in the Academic 
Program Inventory.  These counts include second majors.  Second majors include all dual/second majors (e.g., degree 
CIP receive a degree fraction that is less than 1).  The calculation of degree fractions is made according to each 
institution’s criteria.  The calculation for the number of second majors rounds each degree CIP’s fraction of a degree 
up to 1 and then sums the total.  Second majors are typically used when providing degree information by 
discipline/CIP, to better conveys the number of graduates who have specific skill sets associated with each discipline.  
Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

KPI-14:  Licensure & Certification Exam Pass Rates:  The average pass rates as a percentage of all first-time examinees 
for Nursing, Law, Medicine, Veterinary, Pharmacy, Dental, Physical Therapy, and Occupational Therapy, when 
applicable.  The average pass rate for the nation or state is also provided as a contextual benchmark.  The Board’s 
2025 System Strategic Plan calls for all institutions to be above or tied the exam’s respective benchmark.  The State 
benchmark for the Florida Bar Exam excludes non-Florida institutions.  The national benchmark for the USMLE exams 
is based on rates for MD degrees from U.S. institutions.  Source: BOG staff analysis of exam pass rates provided by 
institutions or licensure/certification boards.   

KPI-15:  National Academy Memberships:  National Academy Memberships held by faculty.  Source:  Center for 
Measuring University Performance in the Top American Research Universities (TARU) annual report or the official 
membership directories maintained by each national academy.  

  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 28 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 
KPI-16:  Faculty Awards:  Awards include:  American Council of Learned Societies (ACLS) Fellows, Beckman Young 
Investigators, Burroughs Wellcome Fund Career Awards, Cottrell Scholars, Fulbright American Scholars, Getty Scholars 
in Residence, Guggenheim Fellows, Howard Hughes Medical Institute Investigators, Lasker Medical Research Awards, 
MacArthur Foundation Fellows, Andrew W. Mellon Foundation Distinguished Achievement Awards, National 
Endowment for the Humanities (NEH) Fellows, National Humanities Center Fellows, National Institutes of Health (NIH) 
MERIT, National Medal of Science and National Medal of Technology, NSF CAREER awards (excluding those who are 
also PECASE winners), Newberry Library Long-term Fellows, Pew Scholars in Biomedicine, Presidential Early Career 
Awards for Scientists and Engineers (PECASE), Robert Wood Johnson Policy Fellows, Searle Scholars, Sloan Research 
Fellows, and Woodrow Wilson Fellows.  Source:  Center for Measuring University Performance in the Top American 
Research Universities (TARU) annual report. 
KPI-17:  Percent of Undergraduates Engaged in Research:  Numerator includes graduating seniors who completed an 
honors thesis, worked on their own research and/or creative activity topic with the guidance of a faculty member 
(individually or jointly), submitted an article or research for publication or exhibited research at a 
professional/academic conference (individually or jointly).  The denominator includes graduating seniors who 
complete the survey.  While senior exit surveys are traditionally administered in the spring term, institutions may 
include senior exit surveys from other terms in a given academic year if they are available.  Source:  Student survey 
data reported to the Florida Board of Governors. 

KPI-18:  Total Research Expenditures:  Total expenditures (in millions of dollars) for all research activities (including 
non-science and engineering activities).  Source:  As reported by each institution to the National Science Foundation 
annual survey of Higher Education Research and Development (HERD) based on the NSF rules and definitions. 

KPI-19:  Research Expenditures Funded from External Sources:  This metric reports the research expenditures funded 
from federal, private industry, and other (non-state and non-institutional) sources.  Source: As reported by each 
institution to the National Science Foundation annual survey of Higher Education Research and Development (HERD) 
based on the NSF rules and definitions. 

KPI-20:  Utility Patents Awarded:  The number of utility patents in a calendar year, excluding design, plant, or similar 
patents.  Source:  United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO). 

KPI-21:  Number of Licenses/Options Executed Annually:  Licenses/options executed in the fiscal year for all 
technologies.  Source:  As reported by universities on the Association of University Technology Managers Annual 
(AUTM) annual Licensing Survey.  

KPI-22:  Number of Start-up Companies Created:  The number of start-up companies that were dependent upon the 
licensing of University technology for initiation.  Source:  Association of University Technology Managers Annual 
(AUTM) annual Licensing Survey.  



2023 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

Draft 4/26/2023 

 
 29 

DEFINITIONS (cont.) 

Enrollment Planning (ENRL) 

ENRL-1:  Fall Headcount Enrollment by Student Level and Student Type:  This table reports the number of students 
enrolled by student type categories.  These headcounts only include those students who were seeking a degree – 
unclassified students (e.g., dual enrolled) are not included.  The student type for undergraduates is based on the ‘Type 
of Student at Most Recent Admission’.  The first-time-in-college (FTIC) student was admitted in the same fall term or in 
the preceding summer term, including those who were re-admitted as FTICs.  Source: State University Database 
System (SUDS).  

ENRL-2:  Percent of Resident Baccalaureate-Seeking Resident Undergraduates Earning 15+ Credits:  This table 
reports the percent of baccalaureate-seeking resident undergraduates who earned fifteen or more credit hours during 
the fall term as reported on the Term Credit Hours Earned element (#01089).  This includes the pass/fail courses in 
which the student earned a passing grade and excludes audited courses.  Source:  State University Database System 
(SUDS).  

ENRL-3:  Full-Time Equivalent Enrollment by Course Level:  This table reports full-time Equivalent (FTE) enrollment, 
which is a measure of all instructional activity, regardless of fundability, that is based on the number of credit hours 
that students enroll.  This FTE calculation is based on the Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS) 
definition, which divides undergraduate credit hours by 30 and graduate credit hours by 24. Pursuant to Section 
1013.31, Florida Statutes, Board facilities staff use this data as a key factor in the calculation of facility space needs for 
institution educational plant surveys.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS).  

ENRL-4:  Percent FTE Enrollment by Method of Instruction:  This table reports the percentages of FTE enrollment that 
is classified as Distance Learning for all students at all campuses regardless of funding source.  Distance Learning is a 
course in which at least 80 percent of the direct instruction of the course is delivered using some form of technology 
when the student and instructor are separated by time or space, or both per Section 1009.24(17), Florida Statutes).  
Effective for the fall 2020 term, Board staff added a new FLEX value to capture the course sections in which there is a 
mix of modalities within the same course section that allows students the option to switch between the modalities 
during the term.  Course sections with mixed modalities that are predetermined/scheduled by the instructor at the 
start of the term to accommodate classroom capacity constraints and result in all students in the section having the 
same percentages of remote work is not a FLEX section and are considered one of the traditional non-FLEX 
designations.  These designations account for planned adjustments to academic calendars (like being remote after 
thanksgiving or spring break) that are known at the beginning of the term.  Unexpected adjustments to the academic 
calendar are not captured by these designations.  FLEX courses start the term as FLEX.  No academic calendar 
adjustment can change a non-FLEX into a FLEX.  Source:  State University Database System (SUDS). 



 

 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Meeting Date: April 26, 2023

SUBJECT: Changing institutional accreditors

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION
Direct New College of Florida staff to begin this summer with the process to switch institutional 
accreditors from SACSCOC (the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on 
Colleges) to the HLC (Higher Learning Commission).

BACKGROUND
Florida Statute 1008.47 allows Florida public colleges and universities to switch from SACSCOC 
to a new institutional accreditor following their next reaffirmation or fifth-year review.

If we follow this default timeline, New College of Florida will begin the process after its fifth-year 
review in 2026. Because the process to switch accreditors takes time, waiting this long means 
that we will apply for initial accreditation with a new accreditor at the same time as we prepare a 
full decennial SACSCOC reaffirmation review (due 2030).

An accelerated timeline will benefit New College of Florida. Beginning the process in Summer 
2023 will allow us the opportunity to complete the switch to a new accreditor before we reach 
the next SACSCOC decennial review cycle.

In addition to directing the timing of this process, the Board is also being asked to approve 
which of the five BOG-recommended institutional accreditors New College of Florida will apply 
to for initial accreditation. Based on a systemwide review of accreditation standards, an 
analysis of mission fit, and a careful evaluation of which potential new accreditor will strengthen 
institutional quality through rigorous oversight, we recommend New College of Florida apply to 
the Higher Learning Commission.

If approved by the Board of Trustees, New College of Florida will provide information to the U.S. 
Department of Education to seek approval to apply to the Higher Learning Commission.

Supporting Documentation Included: Accreditation overview document

Facilitators/Presenters: Dr. Brad Thiessen, Interim Provost

Other Support Documents Available: N/A



HLC

SACS
COC

NWCCU

W
ASC

MSCHE

NEC
HE

Overview


Accreditation:	A peer-review process intended to promote 
quality & ensure continuous improvement.


Accredited institutions may distribute federal financial aid.


Historically, six regional accreditors served specific regions.


New College of Florida is accredited by SACSCOC.  

	 1967 = initial accreditation

	 2004 = initial accreditation as standalone public

	 2021 = most recent reaffirmation


Upcoming SACSCOC milestones:

	 2025-26 = Fifth-year review

	 2030-31 = Decennial reaffirmation review

Florida public colleges and universities must switch accreditors


As of July 2020, the USDOE recognized the six regional accreditors (plus other national accreditors) as “institutional”accreditors.

These institutional accreditors can accredit institutions outside their traditional regional boundaries.


Florida Statute 1008.47 requires Florida public colleges and universities to switch from SACSCOC to a new institutional accreditor.

Schools must switch accreditors following their next reaffirmation or fifth-year review date.

The law will sunset on December 31, 2032.


This means New College of Florida must begin the process to switch accreditors following our 2026 fifth-year review.


We are free to choose any institutional accreditor recognized by the USDOE and vetted by the Florida Board of Governors.  

The Florida Board of Governors has identified the six (formerly regional) accreditors as being most appropriate for SUS schools.


We must determine:

	 (1) Which institutional accreditor do we voluntarily choose for initial accreditation application.

	 (2) When we will begin the process to switch to that new institutional accreditor.



SACSCOC HLC MSCHE NECHE NWCCU WSCUC

% of ranked public liberal arts schools 22% 30% 39% 9% 0% 0%
% of small liberal arts schools 14% 31% 29% 5% 5% 17%
% of COPLAC (public liberal arts) schools 33% 30% 13% 17% 3% 3%
Public university representation on executive council 15% 50% 25% 0% 14% 44%
Time to transition (in months) – <18 23-30 8 12-24 18
Time until next review (in years) 5 4 <8 5 3 6
Full accreditation cycle (in years) 10 10 8 10 7 6, 8, 10
Start-up fees N/A $23k $35k $19k $21k $31.5k
Monitoring / reaffirmation fees $7,000 $0 $11k $28k $18k $26k
Total fees (one reaffirmation cycle) $110k $73k $150k $200k $172k $187.5k

(1) Which institutional accreditor do we voluntarily choose for initial accreditation application?

The following table compares the six institutional accreditors on a variety of characteristics that will impact New College of Florida:

HLC, the Higher Learning Commission, seems to be the best option for New College of Florida:

- We would join peer institutions (31% of small, 30% of ranked, and 30% of public liberal arts colleges are with the HLC)

- Public universities have strong representation on the HLC executive council (making up 50% of the council membership)

- The HLC offers an accelerated application process that could be completed in less than 18 months

- The HLC offers a 10-year accreditation cycle (as opposed to 6-8 year cycles offered by some other institutional accreditors)

- The HLC appears to be the lowest-cost option

Recommendation:  NCF begin the process to switch accreditors to the Higher Learning Commission



Default Timeline Recommended Timeline

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

2034

2035

SACSCOC 
5th year 
review

work on 
5th-year 
review

work on 
decennial 

review

SACSCOC 
decennial 

review

USDOE 
letter

USDOE 
letter

initial 
application

initial 
application

initial 
accreditation

initial 
accreditation

As required by Florida Statute, 
we wait until 2027 to begin 
switching accreditors.

This results in us having to 
complete an initial application 
and comprehensive review/
report for the new accreditor   
at the same time we need to 
conduct a comprehensive 
decennial reaffirmation review 
for SACSCOC.

We begin the process to switch 
accreditors this summer.

We would still need to 
complete an initial application 
and comprehensive review/
report for the new accreditor 
while we develop our fifth-year 
SACSCOC review.

We would not need to go 
through the SACSCOC 
decennial reaffirmation process

SACSCOC 
5th year 
review

work on 
5th-year 
review

work on 
decennial 

review 
(just in 
case)

prepare 
for next 
review

next review

prepare 
for next 
review

next review

prepare 
for 10 
year 

review

SACSCOCnew accreditor SACSCOC new accreditor

(2) When should we begin the process to switch to a new institutional accreditor?



Next Steps:

Prior to applying to a new accrediting agency, we must receive approval from the U.S. Department of Education.


To receive USDOE approval, we must submit information, including:

	 • A confirmation that we have not in the past 24 months had our accreditation withdrawn, revoked, or terminated

	 • The reason(s) why we are seeking the change

	 • An explanation of how we believe the new accrediting agency would strengthen institutional quality

	 • If applicable, an explanation of how the new accrediting agency’s standards are more closely aligned with our mission

	 • An explanation showing we are not requesting a change in order to lessen oversight/rigor or evade sanctions.

	 • An explanation that the requested change is not motivated by a weak or deteriorating financial condition

	 • An explanation that our membership with the new accrediting agency would be voluntary

Once approved by the USDOE, we must:

1. Apply for membership with the new accrediting agency while maintaining SACSCOC accreditation

2. Receive membership from the new accrediting agency

3. Notify the USDOE

4. Maintain accreditation with SACSCOC until the USDOE has provided written acknowledgment of the change

Recommendation:  NCF begin the process this summer to switch accreditors to the Higher Learning Commission



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Date: April 17, 2023  

SUBJECT:  Dr. Rebecca Black Tenure Package for Consideration

PROPOSED  ACTION 

Consideration of tenure for New College faculty member Dr. Rebecca Black. 

Sections 4.5 - 4.6 of the New College Faculty Handbook describe the College's policies 
and procedures for granting New College faculty tenure. Briefly these are: 

• In August, candidates assemble their evaluation file for review; letters are 
requested from New College and outside references. The evaluation file is made 
available for review by faculty within the candidate's Division.
• The Divisional vote on tenure is conducted in November; a majority of three-
fourths is required for a positive tenure vote.
• The Provost's Advisory Committee (comprised of two faculty representatives 
from each Division) independently reviews the application and forwards a 
positive or negative recommendation to the Provost.
• Based on a review of the file, the Divisional vote, and the PAC's 
recommendation, the Provost makes a recommendation to the President, who 
subsequently forwards a recommendation to the Board of Trustees.
• The final decision rests with the Board of Trustees.
• If tenure is not awarded, the candidate may stand again in the mandatory year 
without penalty. 

Supporting Documentation Included: Trustees have received relevant portions of the 
candidate's Tenure packet. Included are: 

Candidate's Curriculum Vitae 
External Review Letters 
Support Letters from Students/Alumni/Colleagues 
Provost’s Advisory Committee Evaluation 
Statements on Research/Teaching 
Division Chair Evaluation 
Provost’s Evaluation 
Interim President's Recommendation 

Facilitators/Presenters: Brad Thiessen 
 Interim Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 

Other Support Documents Available: The New College Faculty Handbook; in 
addition, the complete Tenure Packet is available in the Office of the 
Provost. 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

REBECCA BLACK 

Division of Natural Sciences 

Candidate for Tenure 

2022 - 2023 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Curriculum Vitae…………………………………………………….1 
External Review Letters……………………………………………10 
Support Letters from Students/Alumni/Colleagues……………...24 
Provost’s Advisory Committee Evaluation……………………….56 
Statements on Research/Teaching………………………………...59 
Division Chair Evaluation…………………………………………68 
Provost’s Evaluation……………………………….........................71 
President's Recommendation……………………………...….…...74 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71

Submitted 2/17/2023



72



73



74

February 24, 2023



 
 

Office of the President 
 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: 
 

Bradley Thiessen, Interim Provost 

    
FROM: 
 

Richard Corcoran, Interim President 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

April 14, 2023 

SUBJECT: 
 

Tenure Recommendation Rebecca Black 
 

 
Pursuant to Section 4.5 of the Faculty Handbook and Section 15.5 of the NCBOT-NCUFF Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (the “CBA”), I am submitting this memorandum as my statement detailing the 
extraordinary circumstances warranting my decision that is contrary to the Provost’s recommendation 
regarding awarding tenure related to the candidate identified in the above-referenced subject line (the 
“Candidate”). In accordance with the Sections referenced herein, please supply copies of this 
Memorandum to the Candidate and the Provost’s Advisory Committee (PAC). 

I recommend the Board of Trustees defer its decision on awarding tenure to the Candidate. If that is not 
possible, I recommend denying tenure at this time. This recommendation is based on extraordinary 
circumstances including but not limited to: (1) changes in administration including new President and 
new Provost – whereby many of these positions are currently held in Interim status; (2) turnover of a 
majority of the Board of Trustees; (3) a renewed focus on ensuring the College is moving towards a more 
traditional liberal arts institution; and (4) the related current uncertainty of the needs of the 
divisions/units and College. These are all factors that I have appropriately taken into consideration in 
making decisions regarding tenure pursuant to Section 15.3(a) of the CBA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               5800 Bay Shore Road  |  Sarasota, Florida  34243-2109  |  941-487-4100 |  Fax:  941-487-4201 
 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Date: April 17, 2023  

SUBJECT:  Dr. Gerardo Toro-Farmer Tenure Package for Consideration

PROPOSED  ACTION 

Consideration of tenure for New College faculty member Dr. Gerardo Toro-Farmer. 

Sections 4.5 - 4.6 of the New College Faculty Handbook describe the College's policies 
and procedures for granting New College faculty tenure. Briefly these are: 

• In August, candidates assemble their evaluation file for review; letters are 
requested from New College and outside references. The evaluation file is made 
available for review by faculty within the candidate's Division.
• The Divisional vote on tenure is conducted in November; a majority of three-
fourths is required for a positive tenure vote.
• The Provost's Advisory Committee (comprised of two faculty representatives 
from each Division) independently reviews the application and forwards a 
positive or negative recommendation to the Provost.
• Based on a review of the file, the Divisional vote, and the PAC's 
recommendation, the Provost makes a recommendation to the President, who 
subsequently forwards a recommendation to the Board of Trustees.
• The final decision rests with the Board of Trustees.
• If tenure is not awarded, the candidate may stand again in the mandatory year 
without penalty. 

Supporting Documentation Included: Trustees have received relevant portions of the 
candidate's Tenure packet. Included are: 

Candidate's Curriculum Vitae 
External Review Letters 
Support Letters from Students/Alumni/Colleagues 
Provost’s Advisory Committee Evaluation 
Statements on Research/Teaching 
Division Chair Evaluation 
Provost’s Evaluation 
Interim President's Recommendation 

Facilitators/Presenters: Brad Thiessen 
 Interim Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 

Other Support Documents Available: The New College Faculty Handbook; in 
addition, the complete Tenure Packet is available in the Office of the 
Provost. 



NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

GERARDO TORO-FARMER 

Division of Natural Sciences 

Candidate for Tenure 

2022 - 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

Curriculum Vitae…………………………………………………….1  
External Review Letters……………………………………………11 
Support Letters from Students/Alumni/Colleagues……………...23     
Provost’s Advisory Committee Evaluation……………………….39 
Statements on Research/Teaching………………………………...42 
Division Chair Evaluation…………………………………………48 
Provost’s Evaluation……………………………….........................49 
President's Recommendation……………………………...….…...52 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49

Submitted 2/19/23



50



51



52

February 24, 2023



 
 

Office of the President 
 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: 
 

Bradley Thiessen, Interim Provost 

    
FROM: 
 

Richard Corcoran, Interim President 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 

April 14, 2023 

SUBJECT: 
 

Tenure Recommendation Gerardo Toro-Farmer 
 

 
Pursuant to Section 4.5 of the Faculty Handbook and Section 15.5 of the NCBOT-NCUFF Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (the “CBA”), I am submitting this memorandum as my statement detailing the 
extraordinary circumstances warranting my decision that is contrary to the Provost’s recommendation 
regarding awarding tenure related to the candidate identified in the above-referenced subject line (the 
“Candidate”). In accordance with the Sections referenced herein, please supply copies of this 
Memorandum to the Candidate and the Provost’s Advisory Committee (PAC). 

I recommend the Board of Trustees defer its decision on awarding tenure to the Candidate. If that is not 
possible, I recommend denying tenure at this time. This recommendation is based on extraordinary 
circumstances including but not limited to: (1) changes in administration including new President and 
new Provost – whereby many of these positions are currently held in Interim status; (2) turnover of a 
majority of the Board of Trustees; (3) a renewed focus on ensuring the College is moving towards a more 
traditional liberal arts institution; and (4) the related current uncertainty of the needs of the 
divisions/units and College. These are all factors that I have appropriately taken into consideration in 
making decisions regarding tenure pursuant to Section 15.3(a) of the CBA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               5800 Bay Shore Road  |  Sarasota, Florida  34243-2109  |  941-487-4100 |  Fax:  941-487-4201 
 


	0.0 BOT Agenda for 04-26-23
	1. Prayer
	2. Call to Order
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Call for Public Comment
	5. Consent Agenda
	BOARD MOTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONSENT INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	6. President’s Report – Richard Corcoran, Interim President
	10. Adjournment

	5.0 2-28-23-DRAFT-BOT-minutes
	Draft Policy on Implementation of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Changes
	Brad Thiessen, Chief of Staff presented the draft policy on the implementation of diversity, equity and inclusion changes and received questions from the Board.

	5.1 ACTION ITEM - Approval of 2021-22 Performance Based Funding Metrics Audit
	NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Supporting Documentation:
	Facilitator(s)/Presenter(s):


	5.2 2021-22 CAE Summary of the Performance Funding Data Integrity Audit
	5.3 Mauldin & Jenkins New College of Florida Audit Report
	5.4 2021-22 NCF Data Integrity Certification_ADACompliant
	5.5 Regulation 3-1002 Tuition and Fees
	TEXT OF PROPOSED REGULATION AMENDMENT

	5.6 Regulation 4-2005 Degree Program Planning and Approval
	5.7 Regulation 4-6001 Institutes and Centers
	5.8 BOT_AA_profileadmits_22-23
	Alternative Admissions Informational Item (1).pdf
	NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Date:  June 14, 2022

	Binder1.pdf
	BOT_Profile_Admit_Report_23
	BOT_profileadmitdata_22_23


	7.0 Final_NCF_2023_Accountability_Plan
	NCF.accountability.plan (2).pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	STRATEGY
	Mission Statement
	Statement of Strategy
	Strengths, Opportunities & Challenges
	Three Key Initiatives & Investments
	Graduation Rate Improvement Plan Update
	Key Achievements for Last Year (Student, Faculty, Program, Institutional)
	Performance-Based Funding Goal Adjustments

	PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS
	PERFORMANCE-BASED FUNDING METRICS (cont.)
	KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
	Teaching & Learning (from the 2025 System Strategic Plan not included in PBF section)
	Scholarship, Research & Innovation Metrics

	ENROLLMENT PLANNING
	ACADEMIC PROGRAM COORDINATION
	DEFINITIONS


	8.0 2003-04-07_BOT_Accreditation_Switch
	9.1 BOT Action Item - BLACK
	9.2 BOT Action Item - TORO-FARMER



